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CITY OF COSTA MESA

77 FAIR DRIVE, P.O. BOX 1200, COSTA MESA, CA 92628-1200

FROM THE OFFICE OF THE FINANCE AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR —CITY TREASURER

December 30, 2013

Honorable Mayor, Councilmembers, and Chief Executive Officer:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Costa Mesa (City) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, is hereby submitted. These statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards by an independent public accounting firm of licensed
certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits,
the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement.

As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the various funds and component units of the City.
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial
activities have been included.

The City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013, have been audited by White
Nelson Diehl Evans LLP, an independent public accounting firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and that the statements are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The City, incorporated in 1953, has an estimated population of 110,757 and a land area of 16.8
square miles. It is located in the southern coastal area of Orange County, California, and is
bordered by the cities of Santa Ana, Newport Beach, Huntington Beach, Fountain Valley, and
Irvine. The City is approximately 35 miles southeast of Los Angeles and 85 miles northwest of
San Diego. At its nearest point, the City is approximately 1.5 miles from the Pacific Ocean. The
City is also home to the new world-renowned Henry and Renee Segerstrom Concert Hall, the
Segerstrom Center for the Arts, and the Orange County Fairgrounds.

The City has operated under the council-manager form of government since incorporation.
Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the City Council, which consists of a
Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, and a three-member Council. The City Council is responsible, among
other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing members to commissions
and committees, appointing the Treasurer, and hiring the Chief Executive Officer and City
Attorney. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the City Council, overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and appointing
department heads. The City Council is elected at large on a non-partisan basis. Council members
are elected to four-year staggered terms, with two or three Council members elected every two
years.

The City is a “full service city” and provides a wide range of services. These services include:
police and fire protection; animal control; emergency medical aid; building safety regulation and
inspection; street lighting; land use planning and zoning; housing and community development;
maintenance and improvement of streets and related structures; traffic safety, maintenance, and
improvement; and a full range of recreational and cultural programs.

A “full-service city" is defined as a city that is financially responsible for the full set of basic tax-
dependent municipal services within its jurisdiction including police, fire, parks and recreation,
streets, and land-use planning.

The City maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual budget approved by the City Council. Annual budgets are
legally adopted for all governmental funds on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles, except for certain special revenue and debt service funds for which annual
budgets were not adopted. Budgetary control for management purposes is maintained as
authorized by Council at the department functional level within individual funds.

The Chief Executive Officer submits the budget to the City Council, who adopts it prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Public hearings are conducted prior to budget adoption.
Supplemental appropriations, when required during the fiscal year, are also approved by the City
Council. Intra-functional budgetary amendments are approved by the Chief Executive Officer.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION

The City, like other municipalities has continually been burdened by the financial pressures and
impacts imposed by Federal, State, and County governments. Since the early 1980's, these
governmental units have passed on to municipalities a myriad of unfunded mandates or
service/regulatory requirements and also, have eliminated or redistributed significant sources of
revenue. Most recently, the State of California dissolved all redevelopment agencies during
fiscal year 2012. The City continues to meet these challenges to ensure a high level of service to
our residents.

In light of those impacts, the City has continued to benefit from its unique positioning both
geographically and within its retail sales base. The local economy is primarily based on retail
commercial business and light manufacturing of electronics, pharmaceuticals, and plastics. The
South Coast Plaza Shopping Center is the single largest commercial activity center in the City.
The volume of sales generated by South Coast Plaza, secures its place as the highest volume
regional shopping center in the nation. Sales tax and property tax revenues generated from this
shopping center comprise a significant portion of the City’s total tax revenues.

In fiscal year 2013, the City continued to address the level of operating expenditures while 1ts
strong economic base produced solid increases in sales, property, and transient occupancy tax
revenues over the prior year resulting in a General Fund operating surplus of $15.9 million
before net other financing uses of $6.2 million and an extraordinary loss of $11.9 million. The
extraordinary loss was due to the State of California’s disallowance of the long-term advance
from the City to the prior Redevelopment Agency and a demand payment required by the State
of California. This is the third surplus for the City's General Fund in the last six fiscal years and
is a welcome result of an enormous amount of hard work and commitment from the community,
City Council, and City employees and the ongoing economic recovery. This surplus also helped
to increase the overall cash position of the General Fund compared to fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. This increase will provide the City a greater amount of cash flexibility in the future.

The largest increase in revenues was from sales taxes in the amount of $3.6 million or 8.5%.
Sales taxes decreased significantly during the recession, so ongoing increases during the last few
years have been a welcome recovery. General Fund revenues also included one-time payments
totaling $4 million for settlements and funds from the dissolution of the City’s interest in the
Airborne Law Enforcement joint venture. While overall General Fund expenditures increased a
modest 2%, several City departments and divisions continued to reduce expenditures.

MAJOR (AND FUTURE) DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

Major Developments:

Villa Venetia Apartments (1555 Mesa Verde Drive E.) - Major renovations included 8,200 square
feet of interior and exterior apartment unit improvements, landscape and amenity improvements
(landscaping, new pools, etc.), and the construction of a new 13,944 square-foot, two-story
community building. This renovation project was completed in September 2013.
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Azulon Senior Residential Development (1500 Mesa Verde E.) - Construction began for this 224
unit senior residential rental development with on-site amenities. This project will include
perimeter and gate walls, an 11,000 square foot recreation building, a 1,300 square foot
fitness/yoga building, a 1,100 square foot pool, a 120 square foot spa, a 700 square foot pool
restroom accessory building and 6 residential apartment buildings housing the 224 units. The
Recreation building will incorporate common areas, a community club room with kitchen, dining
and activity areas, a theater, a game and multi-purpose areas, and a leasing office and restrooms.
The project is expected to be completed in 2014.

El Corazon and The Saddle Ranch Chop House Restaurants (Triangle Square - 1870 Harbor
Boulevard) — These two new restaurants opened in April of 2013. Construction began in 2012
and the restaurants opened in early 2013. El Corazon occupies 5,600 square feet of indoor space
and 5,000 square feet of outdoor dining area. The Saddle Ranch Chop House occupies 7,900
square feet of indoor space and 3,500 square feet of outdoor dining area. The Saddle Ranch
Chop House is a destination restaurant, where guests can come for a meal, to experience
the mechanical bull, and to enjoy outdoor fire pits.

Pacifica (421 Bernard Street) - This project is under construction and encompasses an
approximately 161,500 square-foot, four-story, 113-unit multi-family residential development with
5,656 square feet of common areas. The common areas will consist of a 1,900 square-foot leasing
area, a 760 square-foot business center, a 1,250 square-foot club area, a 1,245 square-foot fitness
area, about 300 square feet of restroom area, and a 180 square-foot pool equipment area.

Walgreens (1726 Superior Avenue) —The former Tower Records site on Bristol was screened
by City Council on February 7, 2012 for development of a 14,310 square foot Walgreens retail
store and pharmacy. Square-footage will be divided into a 9,990 square-foot retail area on the first
floor and a 4,320 square-foot basement. The site has been cleared in preparation for construction.

Future Developments:

Orange Coast Buick/GMC/Cadillac Dealership (2600 Harbor Boulevard) - This update of the
auto dealership facility is in compliance with General Motors’ current image standards for their
automotive product brands. The project will encompass demolition of the existing auto
dealership and construction of a new 52,779 auto dealership facility on the same property with
vehicle sales and service areas.

Theodore Robins Ford Dealership (2054 Harbor Boulevard) - This update will add 5,000 square
feet of space to the showroom and improve the interior and exterior of its showroom/office,
service, and parts buildings. The improvements will also include a major fagade renovation of
the entire facility.

Live-Work Development (1695 Superior Avenue) - On July 16, 2013, the City Council screened
an Urban Master Plan project for development of 29 live/work units. The developer, IntraCorp,
returned on September 17, 2013 for screening of a second Urban Master Plan project for
development of an additional 20 live/work units at the corner of 17" Street and Superior Avenue.
These projects have been combined into a single development with 49-unit live/work units, due
to be reviewed by the Planning Commission on November 12, 2013.
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Baker Street Apartment Project (125 East Baker Street) - This proposed development is to be
located on a 4.17-acre, triangular-shaped parcel at the southwest corner of Baker Street and
Pullman Street. The developer is proposing to replace the existing office building and surface
parking areas with a five-story, 240-unit apartment building and parking structure. The
apartment unit breakdown is proposed as follows; 26 studio and studio plus loft units, 117 one-
bedroom and one-bedroom plus loft units, 85 two-bedroom and two-bedroom plus loft units, and
12 three-bedroom plus three-bedroom plus loft units. On-site amenities will include common
open space and recreation areas, a pool, and a clubhouse.

City Common (Southwest corner of Harbor Boulevard and Hamilton Street) — A 1.53 acre site at
the southwest corner of Harbor Boulevard and Hamilton Street with primary frontage on Charle
Street is proposed for construction of a single lot detached single family condominium
development. This project will consist of 28 two- and three-bedroom, three story, detached
homes with 27 two-car garages for three-bedroom homes and single-car garages for two-
bedroom homes. Open space for the development is proposed at 58 percent of the total acreage.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The City accounts for general debt service in four different funds that are combined into the
Financing Authority Fund in the financial statements. Sources of revenues for the retirement of
outstanding bonded indebtedness include general property and sales taxes.

In May 2013, Standard and Poor’s Rating Services affirmed its “AA” rating and gave a stable
outlook on the City’s Public Financing Authority’s outstanding certificates of participation for
the police facilities expansion project. In March 2010, Standard and Poor’s Rating Services
affirmed its 2008 “AA” rating and gave a stable outlook on the City’s Public Financing
Authority’s outstanding certificates of participation.

The City continuously reviews existing debt for refunding possibilities to lower total debt service
requirements. The City also has adopted a comprehensive set of debt policies covering all
aspects of debt issuance in order to consolidate information for debt obligations and maintain or
improve its good credit standing. These policies are reviewed annually and updated as
appropriate.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Costa
Mesa for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. This was the seventeenth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents
conformed to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period
of one year only. We believe that our June 30, 2013 report continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements and it will be submitted it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for the Certificate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
of the City of Costa Mesa

Costa Mesa, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Costa Mesa (the City), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the City’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

-1 -
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Opinions

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in financial position and
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1d to the basic financial statements, the City incorporated deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the
residual measure of net position due to the adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position”. The adoption of this standard also provides a new statement of net
position format to report all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 1d to the basic financial statements, the City has changed its method for
accounting and reporting certain items previously reported as assets or liabilities during fiscal
year 2012-2013 due to the early adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement
No. 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters:
Partial Comparative Information

The financial statements include partial year comparative information. Such information does not
include all of the information required to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should
be read in conjunction with the City’s financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2012 from which
such partial information was derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and budgetary comparison
schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and
analysis and the schedule of funding progress in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
management’s discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.
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Other Matters (Continued):
Required Supplementary Information (Continued)

The budgetary comparison schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements of the City or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary
section, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the supplementary section is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 26, 2013, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.
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Irvine, California
December 26, 2013
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Costa Mesa (City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages
i—vi of this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= Assets of the City’s primary government exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2013 by
$286.2 million (net assets). Of this amount, $43.8 million (unrestricted net position) may be used
to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* The City’s total net position decreased by $7.8 million from the prior fiscal year total of $294
million.

= As of the close of fiscal year 2013, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $81.2 million, a decrease of $1.5 million in comparison with the prior year.

= At the end of fiscal year 2013, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $16.2 million or
18% of total general fund expenditures of $90.1 million.

= The City’s total long-term debt had a net decrease of $1.7 million or 3% during fiscal year 2013.
This decrease was primarily attributable to principal payments on outstanding bonds payable.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains
other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information to show how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).



Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public
safety, community programs, public services, and interest on long-term debt. The City has no business-
type activities or discretely presented component units.

The basic government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18-19 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains twenty-two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Housing Authority, Special Gas Tax,
Home Program, and the Park Development funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the other seventeen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds
to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-29 of this report.



Proprietary Funds

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund, an infernal service fund. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions.
The City uses internal service funds to account for its equipment replacement, workers’ compensation,
and general liability functions. Because each of these functions predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Equipment Replacement and the Self Insurance — Worker’s Compensation/General Liability/
Unemployment funds, cach of which are considered to be nonmajor funds of the City. Each of the
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for these nonmajor internal service funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30-32 of this report.
Fiduciary Funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefits of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
resources of those funds are ot available to support the City’s own programs and services. The
accounting method used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic
fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 33-34 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be
found on pages 35-77 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City. Required supplementary information can be
found on pages 79-86 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and
internal service funds are presented immediately following required supplementary information.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 87-125 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $286.2 million at the close of the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013.



Seventy-two percent of the City’s total net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

Net Position
Governmental Activities
2013 2012

Current and other assets $114,669,504  $118,624,964
Capital assets 233,229.152 238,271,226

Total Assets 347.898.656 356,896,190
Long-term debt outstanding 55,159,883 56,826,118
Other liabilities 6,526,607 6,023,544

Total Liabilities 61,686,490 62,849,662
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 204,884,524 207,954,876
Restricted 37,529,022 41,349.812
Unrestricted 43.,798.620 44.741.840

Total Net Position $286.,212,166 294,046,528

At the end of fiscal year 2013, the City was again able to report positive balances in all three categories
of net position for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental activities.
During fiscal year 2013, the City’s total net position decreased by $7.8 million from prior fiscal year
net assets of $294 million.



Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities

2013 2012
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $11,242,599 $10,766,690
Operating contributions and grants 8,443,327 8,832,089
Capital contributions and grants 5,140,960 4,555,065
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 23,192,755 21,564,340
Sales and use taxes 46,743,795 43,077,849
Transient occupancy tax 7,257,695 6,524,510
Franchise taxes 4,818,972 4,471,326
Business license tax 917,633 888,967
Other intergovernmental, unrestricted 8,814,644 8,594,277
Investment income 640,159 1,377,209
Settlements 1,452,623 -
Miscellaneous 181,943 978,394
Total revenues 118.847.105 111,630,716
Expenses:
General government 22,655,452 19,977,655
Protection of persons and property 63,383,715 61,788,930
Community Programs 6,519,916 4,310,750
Public Services 20,508,217 18,873,545
Redevelopment - 911,704
Interest on long-term debt 1,726,008 2.683.598
Total expenses 114.793.308 108,546,182
Change in net position before extraordinary
gain (loss) 4,053,797 3,084,534
Extraordinary gain (loss) (11,888.159) 9.260,371
Change in net position (7,834,362) 12,344,905
Net position at beginning of year 294.046.528 281,701,623
Net position at end of year $286,212,166 $294,046,528

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $4 million, while the overall decrease in
the net position was $7.8 million. This overall decrease was primarily due to an extraordinary loss
related to the State of California’s disallowance of the City’s loan to the previous Redevelopment
Agency during the fiscal year.



Key elements of the $4 million increase attributable to governmental activities are as follows:

Overall tax revenues increased by $6.4 million or 8% from fiscal year 2012. Sales, transient
occupancy, and franchise taxes continued to rise as the local economy rebounded from the
previous recession. In addition, property taxes increased by $1.6 million or 7%, with $1.3
million being one-time in nature due to reallocations to taxing agencies of taxes previously
received by the Redevelopment Agency prior to dissolution.

Capital contributions and grants increased by $0.6 million or almost 13% from fiscal year 2012.
Capital contributions and grants vary based on available funding and the timing of grant
projects.

Investment income decreased by $0.7 million or 53% from fiscal year 2012. This decrease
reflects the continuation of historically low interest rates set by the Federal Reserve Bank
which resulted in lower returns on fixed income investments.

Settlement revenues increased by $1.4 million or 100% from fiscal year 2012 due to two one-
time large settlements that were received during the fiscal year. The first was $0.9 million from
the County of Orange to reimburse the City for excess property tax collection charges from
prior years pursuant to an ongoing lawsuit filed by various cities. The second was $0.5 million
related to the termination of an affordable housing agreement with a developer.

Miscellaneous revenues decreased by almost $0.8 million or 81% from fiscal year 2012. This
decrease was primarily attributable to a variety of prior year transactions with two notable
receipts. The first was related was a reimbursement from the school district for the School
Resource Officer Program and the second was pursuant to the termination of a retirce health
savings plan

Overall expenses increased by $6.2 million or 6% from fiscal year 2012. Within this category,
larger fluctuations occurred in several expenditure areas. General governmental expenses rose
by $2.7 million or 13%. Principal parts of this increase included filling certain vacant
positions, increased consulting costs, purchases of information technology equipment,
additional funding for the cable television program, grant funding provided to a non-profit to
improve sports facilities at high schools, and a variety of other costs. Community program
costs increased by $2.2 million or 51% as a result of higher levels of grant funded park
improvement projects versus operating programs in the prior year. Redevelopment expenses
decreased by $0.9 million or 100%, due to dissolution of the redevelopment agency by the
State of California during the prior year. Interest costs for long-term debt decreased by $1
million or 36% primarily due to the payoff of the 1998 Refunding Revenue Bonds out of
reserve funds during the year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As was noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
professional standards promulgated by oversight agencies and also due to finance-related legal
requirements.
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Government Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of fiscal year 2013, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $81.2 million, a decrease of $1.5 million in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of this
total amount:

$3.1 million represents nonspendable fund balance which includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either not spendable in form or legally or contractually required to
maintain intact.

$29.3 million represents restricted fund balance which includes amounts that can be spent only
for specific purposes stipulated by external resource provides or through enabling legislation.

$16.1 million represents committed fund balance which includes amounts that can be used
only for specific purposes determined by formal action of the City Council. It includes
legislation (Council action) that can only be overturned by new legislation requiring the same
voting consensus.

$19.3 million represents assigned fund balance which includes amounts that are designated or
expressed by Council but does not require formal action like a resolution or ordinance.

The remaining $13.4 million constitutes unassigned fund balance.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2013, fund balance
of the City’s General Fund decreased by $2.2 million. While total fund balance amounted to $45.6
million, unassigned fund balance was $16.2 million. Key factors in this change are as follows:

Tax revenues increased by $7.3 million or almost 10% over the prior fiscal year. This increase
was primarily a result of the continuing local economic recovery. Notable contributors to this
increase were sales taxes ($3.6 million or 8%), property taxes ($2.6 million or 12%), and
transient occupancy taxes ($0.7 million or 11%). Part of the property tax increase was related
to a one-time transaction totaling $1.3 million related to a redistribution of taxes from the prior
redevelopment agency that was dissolved in the prior fiscal year.

Revenues from investment income decreased by $0.5 million or 81% over the prior fiscal year.
As was noted previously, this decrease reflects the continuation of historically low interest rates
set by the Federal Reserve Bank which resulted in lower returns on fixed income investments.

Variances in other revenues including return on equity (increase of $2.5 million) and
settlements (increase of $1.4 million) were primarily related to several one-time receipts. The
first was due to proceeds received from the dissolution of Airborne Law Enforcement Services,
a joint venture. The second was from two settlements: $0.9 million from the County of Orange
to reimburse the City for excess property tax collection charges from prior years pursuant to an
ongoing lawsuit filed by various cities and $0.5 million related to the termination of an
affordable housing agreement with a developer.
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= QOverall, total revenues in the General Fund increased by $10.4 million or almost 11%.

*  General Government expenditures increased by $1 million or almost 5% from the prior fiscal
year. Principal parts of this increase included the following: certain vacant positions were
filled, increased consulting costs, purchases of information technology equipment, additional
funding for the cable television program, grant funding provided to a non-profit to improve
sports facilities at high schools, and a variety of other costs.

= Community program expenditures increased by $0.5 million or 14% from the prior fiscal year.
This increase mostly due to the ongoing update of the City’s general plan, various increases in
recreation programs including filling of certain vacancies.

=  Overall, total expenditures in the General Fund increased modestly by $1.8 million or 2%.

» Other financing uses increased by $1.4 million of 28%. This increase was primarily
attributable to an interfund transfer of $2.6 million to the Capital Improvements Fund offset by
final debt service costs of $1.3 million for the 1998 Refunding Revenue Bonds which were
disbursed from available reserve funds.

= The $11.9 million extraordinary loss was related to the State of California’s disallowance of the
City’s loan to the previous Redevelopment Agency (now held by the Successor Agency) during
the fiscal year.

Major Funds

The Housing Authority Fund had a $42,706 fund balance as of the end of the fiscal year which
represents a net increase of $0.2 million or 126% from the prior fiscal year. This fund was created as
of February 1, 2012 pursuant to dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency by the State of California as
of January 31, 2012. The City approved the creation of a Housing Authority and it currently monitors
housing rehabilitation loans previously reported in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund.

The Special Gas Tax Fund had $10.4 million in fund balance as of the end of the fiscal year which
represents a net decrease of $2.7 million or 21% from the prior fiscal year. The decrease was primarily
a result of the progression of budgeted street maintenance projects.

The HOME Program Fund had $0.1 million in fund balance at the end of the fiscal year which
represents a net increase of $39,363 or 65% from the prior fiscal year. The increased fund balance
resulted from grant funding and the timing of the drawdown requests.

The Park Development Fund had a $2.9 million fund balance deficit at the end of the fiscal year which
represents an increase of $0.3 million from the deficit in the prior fiscal year. The increased deficit
resulted from a continued lower level of collection of park development fees since the previous
recession.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Costa Mesa’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
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The City utilizes internal service funds which are a propriety fund type. Unrestricted net position of the
Internal Service Funds at the end of the year amounted to $1.2 million. The decrease in total net
position for the fiscal year amounted to $2.9 million.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During fiscal year 2013, actual revenues were $4.9 million more than originally estimated and $4
million more than adjusted during the City’s mid-year budget review. Major revenue line items in the
General Fund are typically adjusted once during the fiscal year in the mid-year budget review while
newly approved grants are budgeted once approved by the City Council. Revenue estimates are
typically not changed for any unexpected activity occurring subsequent to the mid-year budget review.
Therefore, the City recognized increases during the fiscal year and adjusted the budget as necessary.

Actual expenditures were $4.8 million less than originally estimated and $6.5 million less than the
final adjusted budget. Significant contributing factors of this difference were vacant positions
compared to budgeted levels and projects in progress but not completed, such as the general plan
update. Any remaining difference consists of smaller fluctuations in a variety of departments and
accounts.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities (the City has no business-type
activities or discretely presented component units) as of June 30, 2013, amounted to $233.2 million net
of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, building improvements
and structures, machinery and equipment, park systems and facilities, median improvements, roads,
highways, storm drains, and bridges. The City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
decreased by 2% or $5 million from the prior fiscal year. Major capital asset events during fiscal year
2013 included a variety of street construction and park projects citywide. Some of the major projects
this fiscal year included:

» Maintenance, construction, and rehabilitation of streets, walkways, curbs, gutters, and alleys
»  Various traffic mitigation improvement projects

* Various park improvement projects

» Deleted assets pursuant to a physical inventory

During the fiscal year, capital assets not being depreciated decreased by $1.4 million and capital assets
being depreciated decreased by $3.6 million. Construction in progress as of the fiscal year end totaled
$3.2 million and included some of the following projects:

Remaining
Construction Project Total Budget Spent to Date Commitment
Fairview Park Improvements $ 2,753,834 1,307,541 1,446,293
Fairview Traffic Signal Synchronization 658,440 576,389 82,051
Brentwood Park Expansion 854,193 358,530 495,663
Smallwood Park Improvements 380.000 107,969 272.031
Total $4.,646,467 2,350,429 2,296,038
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Capital Assets at Year-End

Governmental Activities

(Net of Depreciation)
2013

Land $32,515,441
Land rights related to streets 29,821,224
Construction in progress 3,204,970
Building improvements and structures 27,388,054
Machinery and equipment 8,875,924
Park System 12,680,131
Infrastructure- roads 105,022,314
Infrastructure- storm drains 13,721,094

Totals 233,229,152

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 6 on pages 55-56 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the City had a number of Public Financing Authority bond issues outstanding, including
2003 Refunding Certificates of Participation ($6.5 million outstanding), 2006 Revenue Refunding
Bonds ($1.6 million outstanding), and 2007 Certificates of Participation ($23.9 million outstanding).
In addition, the City had $0.6 million of capitalized lease obligations and $22.5 million of other

liabilities (primarily related to claims and employee benefits) outstanding.

Long-term liabilities had a net decrease of $1.7 million primarily due to payment of normally

scheduled principal maturities on bonds and lease obligations.

2012

$32,515,441
29,291,575
5,127,008
29,394,749
9,038,409
9,908,447
107,967,375
15,028,222

$238,271,226

Outstanding Debt
Governmental Activities
2013 2012
Bonds payable $32,015,000 $ 35,630,000
Other liabilities 22,533,154 20,138,209
Capitalized lease obligations 611.729 1,057,909
Totals $55,159,883  $56,826,118

Additional information on the City of Costa Mesa’s long-term debt can be found in notes 7 through 11

on pages 57-63 of this report.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

During fiscal year 2013, the local economy continued to improve after the previous recession that
significantly affected the City’s revenue base. While this recovery is welcome and needed, the City
will continue to remain cautious about future economic conditions. Given the volatility of the City’s
sales tax base, economic declines may affect the City sooner than other surrounding cities. While
adopting the fiscal year 2014 budget, the City remained conservative with revenue estimates and
maintained control over budgeted appropriations. Should economic conditions continue to improve,
this philosophy will allow the City to more completely rebound from the previous recessionary period.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the office of the Finance
Director, City of Costa Mesa, P.O. Box 1200, Costa Mesa, California, 92628-1200.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a
whole and its’ activities. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar
to accounting used by most private-sector companies. All current year revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Statement of Net Position

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between assets/deferred
outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving
or deteriorating.

Statement of Activities

The statement of activities presents information to show how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Statement of Net Position

June 30,2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Governmental Activities

2013 2012
Assets:
Cash and investments (note 2) 87,705,171 § 77,718,689
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (note 2) 4,282,101 5,570,697
Due from other governments 10,153,375 10,293,119
Accounts receivable 552,730 502,512
Interest receivable 126,054 250,522
Loans receivable 11,269,460 11,720,148
Rent receivable 232,097 234,570
Advances to Successor Agency (note 23) - 9,794,676
Inventories 177,180 191,520
Prepaid items 171,336 39,292
Investment in joint venture (note 21) - 2,309,219
Capital assets (note 6):
Land 32,515,441 32,515,441
Land rights related to streets 29,821,224 29,291,575
Construction in progress 3,204,970 5,127,008
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 167,687,517 171,337,202
Total assets 347,898,656 356,896,190
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,499,679 2,396,135
Accrued liabilities 1,796,371 2,039,869
Accrued interest payable 369,023 414,629
Retentions payable 129,401 173,691
Deposits payable 732,133 999,220
Long-term liabilities:
Portion due within one year:
Claims payable (notes 7,9 and 19) 3,525,000 3,005,239
Bonds payable (notes 7 and 8) 2,450,000 3,615,000
Capital leases payable (notes 7 and 10) 196,334 446,180
Employee leave benefits payable (notes 7 and 9) 3,600,000 3,550,000
Portion due beyond one year:
Claims payable (notes 7, 9 and 19) 8,876,539 6,785,166
Bonds payable (notes 7 and 8) 29,565,000 32,015,000
Capital leases payable (notes 7 and 10) 415,395 611,729
Employee leave benefits payable (notes 7 and 9) 1,271,727 1,885,878
Net OPEB obligation (notes 7, 9 and 16) 2,897,591 2,470,935
Police retirement 1% supplemental (notes 7,9 and 15) 2,362,297 2,440,991
Total liabilities 61,686,490 62,849,662

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

204,884,524

207,954,876

Protection of persons and property 2,329,840 2,519,015
Community programs 8,713,244 10,262,006
Public services 26,485,938 28,568,791
Unrestricted 43,798,620 44,741,840
Total net position $ 286,212,166 294,046,528

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Functions/Programs

Governmental activities:
General government
Protection of persons

and property
Community programs
Public services
Redevelopment
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Statement of Activities

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net (Expense)
Charges for Contributions  Contributions Revenue and
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants Changes in Net Position
2013 2012
$ 22,655,452 - - - (22,655,452) (19,977,655)
63,383,715 2,739,881 4,022,966 - (56,620,868) (56,117,720)
6,519,916 5,856,107 1,658,799 - 994,990 3,358,208
20,508,217 2,646,611 2,761,562 5,140,960 (9,959,084) (8,059,869)
= - . = - (911,704)
1,726,008 - - - (1,726,008) (2,683,598)
$ 114,793,308 11,242,599 8,443,327 5,140,960 (89,966,422) (84,392,338)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 23,192,755 21,564,340
Sales and use taxes 46,743,795 43,077,849
Transient occupancy tax 7,257,695 6,524,510
Franchise taxes 4,818,972 4,471,326
Business license tax 917,633 888,967
Other intergovernmental, unrestricted 8,814,644 8,594,277
Investment income 640,159 1,377,209
Settlements 1,452,623 -
Miscellaneous 181,943 978,394
Total unrestricted general revenues 94,020,219 87,476,872
Change in net position, before extraordinary item 4,053,797 3,084,534
Extraordinary items:
Loss on advance to sucessor agency (note 24) (11,888,159) -
Gain on transfer of assets to successor agency - 9,260,371
Change in net position (7,834,362) 12,344,905
Net position - beginning of year 294,046,528 281,701,623

Net position - end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Major Governmental Funds

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund must be classified as a major fund in the accompanying fund financial statements
and is used to account for all general revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected for some
special purpose, and for expenditures related to the rendering of general services by the City. The
General Fund is used to account for all resources not required to be accounted for in another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific sources which are
required by law or administrative action to be accounted for in a separate fund. The following have
been classified as major funds in the accompanying fund financial statements:

Housing Authority Fund

Established pursuant to the California Health and Safety Code, Section 34176(a). The primary purpose
of the Housing Authority is to promote affordable housing for families of low and moderate income
within the City.

Special Gas Tax Fund
Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds used for construction and maintenance
of the City’s road network system. Financing is provided by the City’s share of State gasoline taxes.

HOME Program Fund

Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received under the Federal Home
Investment Partnership Program of the Department of Housing and Urban Development. These
revenues must be expended for acquisition, rehabilitation, and new construction of rental housing.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Park Development Fund
Established to account for the development and maintenance of the City’s park system. Financing is

provided by fees charged to residential and commercial developers.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Nonmajor governmental funds constitute all other governmental funds whose assets, liabilities,
revenues, or expenditures do not exceed 10% of the governmental funds total. These funds include
nine Special Revenue Funds, one Debt Service Fund and seven Capital Projects Funds.
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Assets

Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Due from other governments

Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Loans receivable

Rent receivable

Due from other funds (note 3)
Advances to other funds (note 4)
Advances to Successor Agency (note 24)

Inventories
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retentions payable
Deposits payable

Due to other funds (note 3)
Advances from other funds (note 4)

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Special Revenue

Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances (Note 12)

Nonspendable:

Prepaid items/loan deposits

Inventories

Advances to other funds

Advances to Successor Agency

Restricted for:

Protection of persons and property

Community programs
Public services

Debt service
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Housing Special HOME

General Authority Gas Tax Program
$ 37,286,126 195,077 11,423,192 95,847
7,787,361 - - 21,167
520,768 - - =
55,402 324 15,644 132
- 4,772,323 - 5,561,708
232,097 - - -
113,477 ¥ = =
4,285,268 - - -
41,036 - - -
37,251 - - -
$ 50.358.786 4.967.724 11.438.836 5.678.854
$ 1,545,563 1,929 837,245 15,168
1,208,888 - 173,299 2,313
732,133 - - -
- 150,766 - -
3,486,584 152,695 1,010,544 17.481
1,225,761 4,772,323 34.454 5,561,708
37,251 - - -
41,036 - - -
3,059,507 - - -
- 42,706 - 99,665
- - 10,393,838 -
16,125,000 - - -
10,131,615 - - -
16,252,032 - - -
45,646,441 42,706 10,393,838 99,665
$ 50,358,786 4,967,724 11,438,836 5,678,854

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Capital Projects

Nonmajor
Park Governmental Totals
Development Funds 2013 2012

1,402,860 23,667,704 74,070,806 63,874,195
- 4,282,101 4,282,101 5,570,697
- 2,344,847 10,153,375 10,293,119
- 10,568 531,336 489,447
1,939 32,584 106,025 205,660
- 935,429 11,269,460 11,720,148
- - 232,097 234,570
- - 113,477 123,114
- 150,766 4,436,034 4,198,989
< z - 9,794,676
- - 41,036 40,588
- - 37,251 39,292
1.404.799 31.423.999 105.272.998 106.584.495
11,472 763,230 3,174,607 1,971,625
. 402,118 1,786,618 2,027,193
- 129,401 129,401 173,691
- - 732,133 999,220
- 113,477 113,477 123,114
4285268 - 4,436,034 4,198,989
4.296.740 1,408.226 10,372,270 9.493,832
- 2.087.537 13.681.,783 14.334.170
- - 37,251 39,292
- - 41,036 40,588
B - 3,059,507 2,997,657
- - - 9,794,676
- 3,940,401 3,940,401 1,905,217
- 42,587 184,958 101,894
- 9,115,761 19,509,599 21,502,440
B 5,667,101 5,667,101 7,075,697
- - 16,125,000 16,125,000
- 9,162,682 19,294,297 17,442,970
(2,891,941) (296) 13,359,795 5,731,062
(2,891.941) 27.928.236 81.218.945 82.756.493
1,404,799 31,423,999 105,272,998 106,584,495
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Fund balances of governmental funds $ 81,218,945

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital Related Items

When capital assets (property, plant, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities
are purchased or constructed, the cost of those assets are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. However, the Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets
among the assets of the City as a whole:

Cost of capital assets 533,289,846
Accumulated depreciation (303,735,794)

Long-Term Debt Transactions

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and payable in
the current period and, accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities (both
current and long-term) are reported in the Statement of Net Position:

Bonds payable (32,015,000)
Employee benefits leave payable (4,871,727)
OPEB (2,897,591)
Police 1% Retirement Supplemental (2,362,297)
Accrued Interest
Accrued liabilities in the Statement of Net Position differ from the amount reported in
governmental funds due to accrued interest on outstanding debt payable. (369,023)

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to

individual City funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in

governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position because they primarily service

governmental activities of the City. 4,273,024

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Certain unavailable revenues that do not provide current financial resources are reported as
deferred inflows of resources in the funds. 13,681,783

Net position of governmental activities $ 286,212,166

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Special Revenue

Housing Special HOME
General Authority Gas Tax Program
Revenues:
Taxes $ 81,997,002 - - -
Licenses and permits 1,997,057 - - -
Fines and forfeits 1,506,940 - . -
Intergovernmental 9,623,130 - 2,749,407 216,973
Charges for services 3,509,616 - - -
Rental 2,786,330 98,118 - -
Investment income 109,930 - 101,206 -
Return on equity (note 21) 2,551,815 - - -
Settlements 1,452,623 - - -
Miscellaneous 517,920 166,470 - 151,104
Total revenues 106,052,363 264,588 2,850,613 368,077
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 21,982,783 - - -
Protection of persons and property 58,150,275 - - -
Community programs 4,500,656 56,321 - 328,714
Public services 5,177,151 - 5,585,197 -
Redevelopment - - - -
Debt service:
Principal 257,050 - - -
Interest and fiscal charges 47,610 4,687 - -
Total expenditures 90,115,525 61,008 5,585,197 328,714
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 15,936,838 203,580 (2,734,584) 39,363
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 148 - - -
Transfers out (note 5) 6,212,312) - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) (6,212,164) & - -
Net change in fund balances, before
extraordinary item 9,724,674 203,580 (2,734,584) 39,363
Extraordinary items:
(Loss) on advance to successor agency (note 24) (11,888,159) - - -
Gain on transfer to successor agency - - - -
Total extraordinary items (11,888,159) - - =
Net change in fund balances (2,163,485) 203,580 (2,734,584) 39,363
Fund balances (deficit) at beginning of year 47,809,926 (160,874) 13,128,422 60,302
Fund balances (deficit) at end of year $ 45,646,441 42,706 10,393,838 99,665

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Capital Projects

Nonmajor
Park Governmental Totals
Development Funds 2013 2012

- 933,847 82,930,849 76,526,993
- - 1,997,057 1,903,361
- 2,976,300 4,483,240 3,508,181
- 6,606,456 19,195,966 19,838,941
149,806 661,510 4,320,932 4,167,896
- 102,607 2,987,055 3,054,100
11,230 311,103 533,469 1,189,168
- - 2,551,815 -
- = 1,452,623 -
- 74,678 910,172 1,376,946
161,036 11,666,501 121,363,178 111,565,586
- - 21,982,783 20,974,387
- 2,317,816 60,468,091 59,993,364
237,583 1,043,517 6,166,791 6,125,337
- 6,019,403 16,781,751 13,613,312
- . - 911,704
- 3,615,000 3,872,050 4,525,739
242,562 1,446,242 1,741,101 2,734,050
480,145 14,441,978 111,012,567 108,877,893
(319,109) (2,775,477) 10,350,611 2,687,693
- 6,212,312 6,212,460 5,099,168

- (148) (6,212,460) (5,099,168)
- 6,212,164 - -
(319,109) 3,436,687 10,350,611 2,687,693
- - (11,888,159) -
- - - 5,645,371
- - (11,888,159) 5,645,371
(319,109) 3,436,687 (1,537,548) 8,333,064
(2,572,832) 24,491,549 82,756,493 74,423,429
(2,891,941) 27,928,236 81,218,945 82,756,493
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are

different because:

Capital Related Items
When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the
resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of financial
resources expenses, whereas net assets decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charged for
the year.

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Long-Term Debt Transactions
Some expense reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Repayment of
debt service is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds and, thus, has the effect of
reducing fund balances because current financial resources have been used. For the City as a
whole, however, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and
do not result in an expense in the Statement of Activities.

Net changes in employee benefits leave payable 564,151
Principal payments - bonds 3,615,000
Principal payments - capital leases 257,051
OPEB (426,656)
Police Retirement 1% Supplemental 78,694
Accrued Interest
Recording of the current year change of accrued interest on outstanding debt payable. 45,606
Internal Service Funds
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual
City funds. The adjustments for Internal Service Funds “close” those funds by charging additional
amounts to participating governmental activities to completely cover the Internal Service Funds’
costs for the year. (2,895,615)
Investment in Joint Venture
The current year change in the City's interest in the Airborne Law Enforcement operation with the
City of Newport Beach. (2,309,219)
Deferred Inflows of Revenue
Certain unavailable revenues that do not provide current financial resources are reported as deferred
inflows of resources in the funds. (652,387)

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2013

(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and investments (note 2)
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Motorized equipment
Other equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Capital lease payable (note 8)
Claims payable (note 8)

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Capital lease payable (note 8)
Claims payable (note 8)

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

2013 2012
$ 13,634,365 13,844,494
21,394 13,065
20,029 44,862
134,085 -
136,144 150,932
13,946,017 14,053,353
10,522,025 11,701,263
169,648 330,993
(7,016,573) (7,888,517)
3,675,100 4,143,739
17,621,117 18,197,092
325,072 424,514
9,753 12,676
196,334 189,129
3,525,000 3,005,239
4,056,159 3,631,558
415,395 611,729
8,876,539 6,785,166
9,291,934 7,396,895
13,348,093 11,028,453
3,063,371 3,342,881
1,209,653 3,825,758
$ 4,273,024 7,168,639

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Allocated administrative costs
Depreciation
Fuel and repair parts
Claims and premiums

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Interest expense
Other income
Loss on sale of equipment

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers out (note 5)

Total transfers
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

2013 2012
$ 6,335,757 6,315,371
6,335,757 6,315,371
856,359 948,541
640,616 664,795
1,126,831 1,139,155
6,543,299 3,577,090
9,167,105 6,329,581
(2,831,348) (14,210)
107,711 188,042
(30,513) (37,454)
20,073 -
(161,538) (33,810)
(64,267) 116,778
(2,895.615) 102,568
(2,895,615) 102,568
7,168,639 7,066,071
$ 4.273.024 7,168,639




CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and user departments
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash paid to other funds

Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Cash received from disposal of assets
Acquisition of capital assets
Cash paid for capital related financing

Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in claims payable

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

2013 2012
$ 6,327,428 6,542,208
(5,569,937) (5,027,264)
(567,080) (653,216)
190,411 861,728
22,812 52,112
(336,254) (23,197)
(219,642) (219,640)
(533,084) (190,725)
132,544 185,729
132,544 185,729
(210,129) 856,732
13,844,494 12,987,762
$ 13,634,365 13,844,494
$ (2,831,348) (14,210)
640,616 664,795
14,788 (34,777)
(8,329) 193,027
(134,085) -
(99,442) 207,784
(2,923) 264
2,611,134 (155,155)
$ 190411 861,728

There were no non-cash investing, capital or financing activities during the year.
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Successor Agency

Cash and investments (note 2)

Cash and investments with fiscal agent (note 2)
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Total assets

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Deposits payable

Long-term liabilities (note 23)
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

to the City of
Costa Mesa
Redevelopment
Agency
Private Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds
Assets

863,049 2,700,082

704,300 -
- 191,442
- 20

1,567,349 2,891,544
Liabilities

38,259 457,003

3,828 -
- 2,434,541

565,000 -

2,505,000 -

3,112,087 2,891,544
Net Position
(1,544,738)

Net position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Net Position
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Additions:
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Deductions:
Program expenses of former redevelopment agency
Administrative expenses
Demand payments
Interest and fiscal agent expenses of former
redevelopment agency

Total expenses
Extraordinary items:

Gain on advance from the City (notes 22 and 24)
Gain (loss) on transfer to successor agency

Total extraordinary items

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of the year

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Successor Agency

to the City of Costa Mesa
Redevelopment Agency
Private Purpose Trust Fund
2013 2012
$ 1,119,894 $ 1,513,071
276 1,357
1,120,170 1,514,428
153,588 305,457
191,236 146,872
2,393,420 -
928,849 78,088
3,667,093 530,417
9,278,545 -
- (9,260,371)
9,278,545 (9,260,371)
6,731,622 (8,276,360)
(8,276,360) -
$ (1,544,738) _$(8,276,360)
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(1)

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the City of Costa
Mesa, California (City):

(a)

Description of Reporting Entity

The City of Costa Mesa was incorporated on June 29, 1953 as a general law city
under the Government Code of the State of California. The City operates under a
Council-Manager form of government and the City Council is composed of five
members. Among services provided by the City are the following: public works,
parks and recreation, planning, community development, fire, and law
enforcement services.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The City is considered to be financially
accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of that
organization’s governing body and the City is either able to impose its will on that
organization, or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific
financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City. The City is
also considered to be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent upon the City (i.e., it is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates
or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval from the City). In certain
cases, other organizations are included as component units if the nature and
significance of their relationship with the City are such that their exclusion would
cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

All of the City’s component units are considered to be blended component units.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of the City’s operations and so data from these units are reported with the
interfold data of the City. The following organizations are considered to be
component units of the City:

Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority

The Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority (Authority) was established on
August 20, 1990 for the purpose of financing public capital improvements. Even
though it is legally separate, it is reported as if it were part of the City because the
City Council also serves as the governing board of the Authority. Transactions
are reported in the Debt Service Fund. Upon completion, separate financial
statements of the Authority can be obtained at City Hall.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Description of Reporting Entity, (Continued)

Costa Mesa Community Facilities District No. 91-1

The Costa Mesa Community Facilities District No. 91-1 (District) was
incorporated for the purpose of acquiring certain public facilities. Even though it
is legally separate, it is reported as if it were part of the City because the City
Council also serves as the governing board of the District. Separate financial
statements for the District are not prepared.

Costa Mesa Housing Authority

The Costa Mesa Housing Authority (Housing Authority) was created pursuant to
the State of California Health and Safety Code, Section 34176(a). The primary
purpose of the Housing Authority is to promote affordable housing for families of
low and moderate income within the City. The Housing Authority is a separate
entity primarily funded by housing loan repayments. City Council members, in
separate session, serve as the governing board of the Housing Authority, and all
accounting and administrative functions are performed by the City. Financial
activity of the Housing Authority has been blended into the City’s CAFR in
government-wide activities and in the fund financial statements as the Housing
Authority special revenue fund. Upon completion, separate financial statements
of the Housing Authority can be obtained at City Hall.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following:

¢ Government-wide financial statements
e Fund financial statements
e Notes to the basic financial statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting
government as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements
include separate columns for the governmental and business-type activities of the
primary government (including its blended component units), as well as it’s
discretely presented component units. The City of Costa Mesa has no business-
type activities or discretely presented component units. Eliminations have been
made in the Statement of Activities so that certain allocated expenses are recorded
only once (by the function to which they were allocated). However, general
government expenses have not been allocated as indirect expenses to the various
functions of the City.
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(1)

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (Continued)

Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
economic resources measurement focus, all (both current and long-term)
economic resources and obligations of the reporting government are reported in
the government-wide financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses,
gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are
recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33.

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and
payments made by parties outside of the reporting government’s citizenry if that
money is restricted to a particular program. Program revenues are netted with
program expenses in the Statement of Activities to present the net cost of each
program.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-
wide financial statements, rather than reported as expenditures. Proceeds of long-
term debt are recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statements,
rather than as other financing sources. Amounts paid to reduce long-term
indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a reduction of the
related liability, rather than as expenditures.

Franchise fees and business license charges have been reported as general revenue
because the fees are based on gross receipts not charges for services.

Fund Financial Statements

The underlying account system of the City is organized and operated on the basis
of separate funds. A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording resources, related liabilities,
obligations, reserves, and equities segregated for the purpose of carrying out
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. Fund financial statements for the primary
government’s governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds are presented after
the government-wide financial statements. These statements display information
about major funds individually and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for
governmental funds. Proprietary statements include financial information for
internal service funds. Fiduciary statements include financial information for
Agency and Private Purpose Trust funds. Fiduciary funds of the City represent
assets held by the City in a custodial capacity for other individuals or
organizations.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (Continued)

Governmental Funds

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they
become measurable and available as net current assets. Measurable means that
the amounts can be estimated or otherwise determined. Available means that the
amounts were collected during the reporting period or soon enough thereafter to
be available to finance the expenditures accrued for the reporting period. The
City uses an availability period of 60 days.

Sales taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, motor vehicle in lieu, transient
occupancy taxes, grants, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period to the extent normally collected within the
availability period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available where cash is received by the government.

Revenue recognition is subject to the measurable and availability criteria for the
governmental funds in the fund financial statements. Exchange fransactions are
recognized as revenues in the period in which they are earned (i.c., the related
goods or services are provided). Locally imposed derived tax revenues are
recognized as revenues in the period in which the underlying exchange
transaction upon which they are based takes place. Imposed nonexchange
transactions are recognized as revenues in the period for which they were
imposed. If the period of use is not specified, they are recognized as revenues
when an enforceable legal claim to the revenues arises or when they are received,
whichever occurs first. Government-mandated and voluntary nonexchange
transactions are recognized as revenues when all applicable eligibility
requirements have been met.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the
current financial resources measurement focus. This means that generally only
current assets and current liabilities are included on their balance sheets. The
reported fund balance is considered to be a measure of “available spendable
resources.” Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues
and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in fund balance. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources
and uses of “available spendable resources” during a period.

Noncurrent portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are
reported on the balance sheet in spite of their spending measurement focus.
Special reporting treatments are used to indicate, however, that they should not be
considered “available spendable resources,” since they do not represent fund
balance.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (Continued)

Recognition of governmental fund type revenues represented by unavailable
revenues are reported as deferred inflows of revenues.

Due to the nature of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition
for governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by noncurrent
liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are
not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the
year that resources were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of
long-term debt are recorded as other financing sources rather than as a fund
liability. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as fund
expenditures.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses
are considered to be paid first from restricted resources, and then from
unrestricted resources.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds

The City’s internal service funds are proprietary funds. In the fund financial
statements, proprietary and private-purpose trust funds are presented using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and
expenses are recognized when the related goods or services are delivered. In the
fund financial statements, proprietary and private-purpose trust funds are
presented using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all
assets/deferred outflows of resources and all liabilities/deferred inflows of
resource (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are
included on their statement of net position. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net
position.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives us essentially equal
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as investment income, gain or loss on sale
of equipment and miscellaneous revenues result from nonexchange transactions
or ancillary activities. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
expenses. Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the
internal service fund financial statements, rather than being reported as
expenditures. Proceeds of long-term debit are recorded as liabilities in the internal
service fund financial statements, rather than being reported as other financing
sources. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the internal service
fund are reported as reductions of the related liability, rather than as expenditures.
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(b)

(©)

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (Continued)

The City’s agency funds are fiduciary funds. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and have no measurement focus but utilize the
accrual basis of accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities.

Fund Classifications

The funds designated as major funds in the fund financial statements are
determined by a mathematical calculation consistent with GASB Statement No.
34. The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All
general tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual
agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. Expenditures of this
fund include the general operating expenditures and other costs which are not paid
through other funds.

Housing Authority Fund — This special revenue fund was established per Section
34176(a) of the Health and Safety Code. The primary purpose of this Fund is to
promote and preserve affordable housing for families of low and moderate
income within the City. Financing is primarily provided by housing rehabilitation
loan payments.

Special Gas Tax Fund — This special revenue fund was established to account for
the receipt and disbursement of funds used for construction and maintenance of
the road network system of the City. Financing is provided by the City’s share of
State gasoline taxes.

Home Program Fund - This special revenue fund was established to account for
the receipt and disbursement of funds received under the Federal Home
Investment Partnership Program of the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. These revenues must be expended for acquisition, rehabilitation,
and new construction of rental housing.

Park Development Fund — This capital projects fund was established to account

for development and maintenance of the City’s park system. Financing is
provided by fees charged to residential and commercial developers.
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(©)

(d)

Fund Classifications (Continued)

The City’s fund structure also includes the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — Internal service funds are used to finance and account
for activities involved in rendering equipment replacement and self-insurance
services to departments within the City. Costs of materials and services used are
accumulated in these funds and charged to the user departments as such goods are
delivered or services rendered.

Agency Funds — Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a
fiduciary capacity for individuals, government entities, and others. Such funds are
operated by carrying out the specifications of trust indentures, statutes,
ordinances, or other governing regulations.

Private Purpose Trust Funds — The private-purpose trust fund accounts for the
assets, liabilities, additions, and deductions made on behalf of the former Costa
Mesa Redevelopment Agency.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2012-2013, the City implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”. This
statement incorporates deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources, as defined by GASB Concepts Statement No. 4, “Elements of Financial
Statements” into the definitions of the required components of the residual
measure of net position, formerly net assets. This statement also provides a new
Statement of Net Position format to report all assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position.

In fiscal year 2012-2013, the City early implemented GASB Statement No. 65,
“Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”. This statement established
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows
of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities. Due to the early implementation of this
statement, certain deferred revenues previously reported as liabilities are now
reflected as deferred inflows of resources. No change to net position resulted
from the implementation of this new standard.
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(e)

®

€y

(h)

®

Cash and Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying balance sheet at fair value, except
for nonparticipating certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are
reported at cost because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not
affected by changes in market interest rates.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings,
changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation,
maturity, or sale of investments.

The City pools cash and investments of all funds except for assets held by fiscal
agents. Each fund’s share in this pool is displayed in the accompanying financial
statements as cash and investments. Investment income earned by the pooled
investments is allocated to the various funds based on each fund’s average cash
and investment balance.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-
term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of
changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents also
represent the proprietary funds share in the cash and investment pool of the City.

Advances to Other Funds

Long-term interfund advances are recorded as receivables and as nonspendable
fund balances by the advancing governmental funds and as a liabilities in the
receiving funds.

Inventories

Inventories of materials and supplies are carried at cost on an average cost basis.
The City uses the consumption method of accounting for inventories.

Prepaids

The City uses the consumption method to record prepaid items.
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(k)

Capital Assets

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost at the time
of purchase. Assets acquired from gifts or contributions are recorded at fair
market value on the date received. Generally, capital asset purchases in excess of
$5,000 are capitalized if they have an expected useful life of two years or more.

Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) capital assets consisting of
certain improvements including roads, streets, sidewalks, medians, sewers, and
storm drains. Public domain assets acquired prior to 1980 have been included in
the accompanying financial statements. Capital assets used in operations are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method in the
government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements of the
proprietary funds. Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations and
accumulated depreciation is reported on the respective Statement of Net Position.
The ranges of lives used for computing depreciation for each capital asset class
are as follows:

Landscaping and sprinkler improvements 35-40 years
Underground lines and storm drains 50-100 years
Buildings and structures 10-20 years
Automotive and other equipment 2-20 years
Office furniture 5-20 years
Office machines 3-20 years
Other equipment 5-60 years
Infrastructure — roads 5-50 years
Infrastructure — storm drain 50-100 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expenditure) until then. The City has no items that qualify for reporting in this
category.

The statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This financial statement element, deferred inflows
of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The City has only one type of item, unavailable revenue, which arises
only under the modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in
this category. Governmental fund balance sheets report unavailable revenues
from three sources: long-term loans receivable, grants not collected within the
availability period, and accumulated interest on a long-term advance. These
amounts are deferred and will be recognized as inflows of resources in periods
that the amounts become available.
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M

Fund Balances

Fund balances are reported in the fund statements in the following classifications:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — this includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either not spendable in form (such as inventory) or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (such as endowments).

Restricted Fund Balance — this includes amounts that can be spent only for
specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or
through enabling legislation. If Council action limiting the use of funds is
included in the same action (legislation) that created (enables) the funding
source, then it is restricted.

Committed Fund Balance — this includes amounts that can be used only for
specific purposes determined by formal action of the Council. It includes
legislation (Council action) that can only be overturned by new legislation
requiring the same type of voting consensus that created the original action.
Therefore, if Council action limiting the use of funds is separate from the
action (legislation) that created (enables) the funding source, then it is
committed, not restricted. The City considers a resolution, an ordinance, or a
minutes action to constitute a formal action of City Council for the purposes
of establishing, modifying, and rescinding a committed fund balance.

Assiened Fund Balance — this includes amounts that are designated or
expressed by the Council, but does not require a formal action like a
resolution or ordinance. The Council may delegate the ability of an employee
or committee to assign uses of specific funds for specific purposes. Such
delegation of authority has not yet been granted to persons or bodies other
than the Council.

Unassigned Fund Balance — this includes remaining spendable amounts which
are not included in one of the other classifications.

In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted
fund balance to have been depleted before using any components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when components of the unrestricted fund
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted
first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied
last.
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Employee Leave Benefits

Regular full-time City employees earn from 92 to 526.4 hours of vacation a year,
depending upon their length of employment and the bargaining unit. Employees
can carry forward vacation hours in excess of twice that earned in a calendar year
upon approval of the department head as authorized by the Chief Executive
Officer. If an employee’s vacation hours reach the maximum, vacation accruals
will freeze until such time the accrual drops below the maximum. Upon
termination, permanent employees are entitled to receive compensation at their
current rate for all unused vacation up to and including the date of termination.

Sick leave credit is accrued at bi-weekly rates of 3.69 hours for miscellaneous
employees and sworn police officers, 4 hours for police management, and 6.72
hours for sworn fire employees. Balances in primary sick leave banks may
accumulate up to a maximum of 480 hours for miscellaneous employees and
sworn police officers, and 672 hours for sworn fire employees. Upon reaching
maximum hours, bi-weekly accruals are distributed as follows at the employee’s
option: 1/2 of the benefit is a) paid at employee’s current hourly base rate of pay;
or b) converted into vacation hours. The remaining 1/2 of the benefit is placed
into a secondary sick leave bank. Secondary banks may be used in the event of
verified non-industrial disabilities which result in absences of 60 consecutive
calendar days. Sick leave hours equal to hours used from the primary bank for
eligible disabilities may be transferred from the secondary bank to the primary
bank, provided the transfer does not result in the primary bank having in excess
hours over stated limits. Upon separation from the City with a minimum of 20
years continuous service or eligibility for retirement benefits, employees receive
pay at their current hourly rate for 1/2 of the balance in their primary bank, except
for police management who receive 50% of both primary and secondary leave
banks

A liability is recorded for unused vacation and similar compensatory leave
balances since the employees’ entitlement to these balances are attributable to
services already rendered and it is probable that virtually all of these balances will
be liquidated by either paid time off or payments upon termination or retirement.

A liability is recorded for unused sick leave balances only to the extent that it is
probable that the unused balances will result in termination payments. Other
amounts of unused sick leave are excluded from the liability since their payment
is contingent solely upon the occurrence of a future event (illness) which is
outside the control of the City and the employee.
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Emplovee Leave Benefits (Continued)

A current liability is accrued in the governmental funds for material leave benefits
due on demand to governmental fund employees that have terminated prior to
year end. All other amounts are only recorded in the government-wide financial
statements. These non-current amounts will be recorded as fund expenditures in
the year in which they are paid or become due on demand to terminated
employees.

Claims and Judgments

The City records a liability for litigation, judgments, and claims when it is
probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred prior to
year-end and the probable amount of loss (net of any insurance coverage) can be
reasonably estimated. This liability is recorded in an internal service fund which
accounts for the City’s self-insurance activities.

Prior Year Data

The information included in the accompanying financial statements for the prior
year has been presented for comparison purposes only and does not represent a
complete presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Certain minor reclassifications of prior year data have been made in order to
enhance their comparability with current year figures.

Estimations

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principals requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent event

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through the date of the auditor’s opinion, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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(2) Cash and Investments

Cash and investments are reported as follows:

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent

Total cash and investments

Cash and investments at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Cash and deposits:
Imprest cash on hand
Demand deposits

Total cash and deposits

Investments:
Costa Mesa Community Facilities District Bonds
Commercial Paper
Federal agency securities
Money market mutual funds
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool
Lehman Bros Holdings, Inc-Bankruptcy

Total investments

Total cash and investments
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$ 87,705,171
4,282,101

3,563,131
704,300

96,254,703

$ 12,075
430,887

442,962

1,385,000
4,998,997
40,355,840
5,709,653
42,790,901
571.350

95,811,741
$ 96,254,703
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Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City of Costa
Mesa’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies investment types that are authorized for the City by the
California Government Code and investment policies of the City and the Successor
Agency of the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency. The table also identifies certain
provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit
risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that
are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general
provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.

Authorized by
Investment Types Investment ~ Maximum Percentage  Investment In
Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity*  of Portfolio*  One Issuer*

Local Agency Bonds No 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Securities Yes 5 years None None
Federal Agency Securities Yes 5 years None 60%
Banker’s Acceptances Yes 180 days 40% 10%
Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements Yes 1 year None None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes Yes 5 years 30% 5%

Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities No 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds Yes N/A 35% None
Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A $50 Million None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive.
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Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government code or the

City’s investment policy. The table below ide
authorized for investments held by bond trustees.

ntifies the investment types that are
The table also identifies certain

provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration of credit risk. Generally the following investment types are authorized by

City debt agreements:

Authorized
Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Securities

Federal Agency Securities

Banker’s Acceptances

Commercial Paper

Money Market Mutual Funds

Investment Agreements

Interest-Bearing Time Deposits

Repurchase Agreements

Local Agency Investment Fund

State Obligations

Pre-refunded Municipal
Obligations

Maximum

Maturity

None
S5 years
270 days
365 days

5 years
None

30 days
270 days

None
None

None
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Maximum
Percentage
Allowed

None
None
None
None

20%
None

None
None

None
None

None

Maximum
Investment in
One Issuer

None
None
None
None

10%
None
None
None
None
None

None
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Year ended June 30, 2013

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the
ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments, and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for

operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including
investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months
12 Months 13 to 24 2510 60 More than 60
Investment Type Total Or Less Months Months Months

Federal Agency Securities $40,355,840 - - 40,355,840 -
State Investment Pool (LAIF) 42,790,901 42,790,901 - - -
Commercial Paper 4,998,997 4,998,997 - - -
Money Market Mutual Funds 723,251 723,251 - - =
Held by Trustee:

Costa Mesa Community

Facilities District Bonds 1,385,000 - 270,000 490,000 625,000

Money Market Mutual Funds 4,986,402 4,986,402 - - -

Lehman Bros. Holdings, Inc.

Bankruptcy 571.350 348,222 223.128 - -

Total $95,811,741 53,847,773 493,128 40,845,840 623,000

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations

The City (including investments held by bond trustees) held no investments which were
highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in
the information provided above).
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Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each
investment type:

Ratings at 6/30/13

Minimum Legal Standard &
Investment Type Value Rating Moodys Poors
Federal Agency Securities $40,355,840 N/A Aaa AA+
Commercial Paper:

GE Capital Corporation 4,998,997 A Pl Al
State Investment Pool (LAIF) 42,790,901 N/A Not Rated Not Rated
Money Market Mutual Funds 723251 A Aaa AAA

Held by Trustee:
Costa Mesa Community
Facilities District Bond 1,385,000 N/A Not Rated | Not Rated
Money Market Mutual Funds 4,986,402 A Aaa AAA
Leg?f;f;fcsy' Holdings Inc. 571,350 N/A Not Rated | Not Rated
Total $95,811,741
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Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk
for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
the state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the
governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool
must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California
law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the
Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is
reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-
rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to
the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on
the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost
basis.
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Due From and To Other Funds

(4)

Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2013 are as follows:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 113,477

All receivables resulted from the recording of reimbursement of miscellaneous costs,
which are expected to be reimbursed next year.

Advances To and From Other Funds

Advances to and from other funds at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Park Development Fund $4,285,268
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Housing Authority 150,766

Total $4.436.034

The terms for the significant advances reflected above are as follows:

The $4.285,268 advance from the General Fund to the Park Development Fund is for the
purchase of land. The annual interest rate is 6%. The advance is expected to be repaid

with future park development fees.

The $150,766 advance from the Community Development Fund to the Housing Authority
Fund represents a loan to the Housing Authority, which bears an interest rate of 3% and,
likewise, is not expected to be repaid in the forthcoming year, but is expected to be

repaid.
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Transfers In and Out

Transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Transfers out Transfers in Total

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $6,212,312 (a)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 148 (b)
$6,212,460

(a) The General Fund transferred the following to the Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
$94.805 to the Supplemental Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund for the
reimbursement of public safety expenditures;
2. $141 to the Homelessness Prevention Fund for reimbursement of negative fund
balance;
3. $3,527,366 to the Financing Authority Debt Service Fund for debt service payments;
4. $2,590,000 to the Capital Improvements Fund for capital improvement projects.
(b) The following Nonmajor Governmental Fund transferred funds back to the General Fund:
1. Parking District Fund transferred $148 in investment earnings.
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Capital Asset

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Land rights related to streets
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Building improvements and structures
Landscaping and sprinklers
Automotive equipment

Office furniture

Office machines

Other equipment

Park system and facilities
Infrastructure — roads

Infrastructure — storm drains

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building improvements and structure
Landscaping and sprinkler
Automotive equipment
Office furniture
Office machines
Other equipment
Park system and facilities
Infrastructure — roads
Infrastructure — storm drain

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Balance at Balance at
July 1,2012 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2013
$32,515,441 - - 32,515,441
29,291,575 529,649 - 29,821,224
5,127,008 4.204.987 (6,127,025) 3,204,970
66,934,024 4,734,636 (6,127,025) 65,541,635
59,561,510 76,337 (130,279) 59,507,568
9,363,689 - - 9,363,689
13,512,258 663,260 (2,983,911) 11,191,607
486,591 4,596 (6,069) 485,118
9,425,208 670,563 (2,355,837) 7,739,934
10,265,348 1,431,388 (2,086,442) 9,610,294
15,135,494 3,536,724 - 18,672,218
268,683,347 2,519,453 - 271,202,800
90.666.656 - - 90,666.656
477.100.101 8.902.321 (7.562,538) 478.439.884
(30,166,761) (2,083,030) 130,277  (32,119,514)
(9,333,741) (17,926) - (9,351,667)
(9,370,855) (969,392) 2,817,655 (7,522,592)
(354,222) (35,812) 6,069 (383,965)
(6,933,683) (262,394) 2,312,308 (4,883,769)
(8,022,184) (1,289,320) 1,938,779 (7,372,725)
(5,227,047) (765,040) - (5,992,087)
(160,715,972) (5,464,514) - (166,180,486)
(75.638.434) (1,307,128) = (76.945.562)
(305,762.899)  (12,194,556) 7.205.088 (310,752,367)
171,337,202 (3.292.235) (357.450) 167.687.517
1,442,401 6,484,475) 233,229,152

Governmental activities capital assets, net $238,271.226
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Capital Assets, (Continued)

Depreciation expense is charged to the following functions for the year ended June 30,
2013:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 1,126,669
Protection of persons and property 2,941,907
Community programs 1,213,412
Public services 6.912.568

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $12.194,556

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2013. The significant projects
include the following:

Remaining
Construction Project Project# Total Budget Spentto Date Commitment
Fairview Park Improvements 700029 $ 2,753,834 1,307,541 1,446,293
Smallwood Park Expansion 700092 380,000 107,969 272,031
Brentwood Park Expansion 700077 854,193 358.530 495,663
Total $3,988.027 1,774,040 2,213,987
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Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as

follows:
Portion  Portion

Due Due
Within  Beyond
Balance at Balance at One One

July 1. 2012 Additions Reductions June 30,2013 Year Year

Governmental Activities
Bonds:
Public Financing Authority

2003 Refunding

Certificates of Participation $7,520,000 - (960,000) 6,560,000 990,000 5,570,000
Public Financing Authority

2006 Revenue

Refunding Bonds 1,720,000 - (140,000) 1,580,000 145,000 1,435,000
Public Financing Authority

2007 Certificates of

Participation 25,140,000 - (1,265,000) 23,875,000 1,315,000 22,560,000
Public Financing Authority

1998 Refunding

Revenue Bonds 1,250,000 - (1,250.,000) - - -

Total bonds payable 35,630,000 5 (3.615,000) 32,015,000 2,450,000 29,565,000
Other liabilities:
Claims payable 9,790,405 5,934,071 (3,322,937) 12,401,539 3,525,000 8,876,539
Employee leave

benefits payable 5,435,878 3,233,565 (3,797,716) 4,871,727 3,600,000 1,271,727
Net OPEB obligation 2,470,935 2,153,804 (1,727,148) 2,897,591 - 2,897,591
Police Retirement

1% Supplemental 2,440,991 140.558 (219.252) 2,362,297 - 2,362,297

Total other liabilities 20,138,209 11,461,998 (9,067,053) 22,533,154 7,125,000 15.408,154
Capital leases:
Tewinkle Park Athletic Field 257,051 - (257,051) - - -
TDA Fire Truck 800,858 - (189.129) _ 611,729 _ 196,334 __ 415,395

Total capital leases

payable 1,057,909 - (446,180) 611,729 _ 196,334 _415,395

Total $56,826,118 11,461,998 (13,128,233) 55,159,883 9,771,334 45,388,549
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Bonds Payable

Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority Bonds

2007 Certificates of Participation

On January 18, 2007, the Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority issued $29,960,000 of
2007 Certificates of Participation. The Certificates are to provide funding for the
construction and equipping of certain improvements to the Civic Center complex
particularly the expansion of the police facility. The Certificates mature from October 1,
2007 through October 1, 2026 in annual installments ranging from $745,000 to
$2,180,000. Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year,
commencing on April 1, 2007 at a rate ranging from 3.75% to 4.30%.

There is a reserve requirement of $2,297,204 on the 2007 Certificate of Participation. The
City has $2,297,204 on reserve with the fiscal agent at June 30, 2013. The principal
balance outstanding at June 30, 2013 is $23,875,000.

2006 Revenue Refunding Bonds

On June 1, 2006, Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority issued $2,365,000 of Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006A, to advance refund the outstanding portion of the
$3,225,000 of the 1991 Lease Revenue Bonds issued on November 1, 1991. The bonds
were issued to provide monies to enable the Authority to acquire the City of Costa Mesa
Community Facilities District 91-1 (Plaza Tower Public Improvements) 1991 Special
Tax Bonds, issued under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982. The
$2,365,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds which consists of $1,955,000 of serial bonds and
$410,000 of term bonds. The serial bonds mature from August 1, 2007 through August 1,
2019 in annual installments ranging from $120,000 to $190,000. The term bonds mature
from August 1, 2020 through August 1, 2021 in annual installments ranging from
$200,000 to $210,000. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of
each year, commencing on February 1, 2007 at rates ranging from 3.85% to 5.10%.

There is a reserve requirement of $224,755 on the 2006 Revenue Refunding Bonds. The
City has $224,755 on reserve with the fiscal agent at June 30, 2013. The principal balance
outstanding at June 30, 2013 is $1,580,000.

The bonds are secured by special tax levied within CFD 91-1 Plaza Tower Public
Improvements. The special taxes are levied and collected for debt service on the bonds
are required to be remitted to the fiscal agent for the bonds within ten days of receipt. The
County remitted taxes on December 20, 2012 and April 25, 2013; the City remitted
payment 13 and 11 days later, respectively.
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Bonds Payable, (Continued)

Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority Bonds, (Continued)

2003 Refunding Certificates of Participation

On October 1, 2003, the Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority issued a $14,340,000
refunding Certificates of Participation (COP), Series 2003 to refund the $18,970,000
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993A, to advanced refund $640,000 of outstanding
1966 Bonds and $16,430,000 of outstanding 1988 Leasc Revenue Bonds. The 1966
Bonds were issued to finance construction of the Municipal Center and the 1988 Lease
Revenue Bonds were issued to finance the acquisition of right-of-way property on
Victoria Street. The certificates issued start maturing on 2004 to 2018 in semi-annual
installments ranging from $805,000 to $1,210,000. Interest is payable on April 1 and
October 1, commencing on April 1, 2004 at rates ranging from 2.0% to 4.2%. Certificates
maturing on or after October 1, 2014 are subject to optional redemption, in whole or in
part from among maturities as selected by the Authority on October 1, 2013. The
certificates are subject to mandatory redemption on any date from the net proceeds
deposited in the prepayment fund.

The amount required for the bond reserve for the 2003 Refunding Certificate of
Participation is $1,273,250. The City has $1,273,250 on reserve with the fiscal agent at
June 30, 2013. The principal balance outstanding at June 30, 2013 is $6,560,000.

1998 Refunding Revenue Bonds

On May 1, 1998, the Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority issued $13,715,000 of 1998
Refunding Revenue Bonds. The bonds mature serially from October 1, 1998 through
October 1, 2012 in annual principal payments ranging from $580,000 to $1,250,000 and
bear interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000. There is no longer a reserve requirement since the bonds were
paid off during the fiscal year.

The 1998 Lease Revenue Bonds were issued in connection with the lease and leaseback
of the Los Lagos and Mesa Linda Golf Courses (the “Project”) currently owned by the
City of Costa Mesa (the “City”). The Project was leased by the City to the Authority, and
the Authority leased back the Project to the City. The Authority used the proceeds from
the issuance of these 1998 Refunding Revenue Bonds to advance refund $12,665,000 of
the Authority’s outstanding 1990 Lease Revenue Bonds.
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(8) Bonds Pavyable, (Continued)

Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority Bonds, (Continued)

The annual debt service requirements for the Public Financing Authority Bonds as of
June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

2003 2007

Year 2006 Refunding Certificates Certificates

Ending Refunding Revenue Of Participation of Participation

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 $145,000 74,526 990,000 261,719 1,315,000 954,904
2015 150,000 67,666 1,025,000 223,275 1,365,000 901,304
2016 160,000 60,301 1,070,000 182,713 1,420,000 845,604
2017 165,000 52,439 1,110,000 140,450 1,480,000 787,604
2018 175,000 44,086 1,155,000 89,375 1,530,000 727,404
2019 185,000 35,130 1,210,000 30,250 1,590,000 665,004
2020 190,000 25,708 - - 1,640,000 600,404
2021 200,000 15,810 - - 1,710,000 533,404
2022 210,000 5,355 - - 1,775,000 462,594
2023 - - - - 1,850,000 387,829
2024 - - - - 1,925,000 309,248
2025 - - - - 2,005,000 226,216
2026 - - - - 2,090,000 138,675
2027 - - - . 2,180,000 46,870
Total $1,580,000 381,021 6,560,000 927,782 23,875,000 7,587,064
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Other Liabilities

Claims and Judgments

The City retains the risk of loss for general liability and workers’
compensation claims as described in note 19. These amounts
represent estimates of amounts to be paid for reported general
liability and workers’ compensation claims including incurred-but-
not-reported claims based upon past experience, modified for
current trends and information. While the ultimate amount of
losses incurred through June 30, 2013, is dependent on future
developments, based upon information from the City’s attorneys,
the City’s claims administrators and others involved with the
administration of the programs, City management believes the
accrual is adequate to cover such losses. The estimated liability at
June 30, 2013 for general liability amounted to $3,789,639 and
workers’ compensation was $8,611,900.

Employee Leave Balances Payable

The City’s policies relating to compensated absences are described
in note 1. The following liability at June 30, 2013 is expected to be
paid primarily by the general fund in future years, consistent with
prior year treatment.

OPEB

The City administers a single-employer defined benefit plan which
provides medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their
spouses as described in note 16. The plan covers employees hired
before January 1, 2004 who retire directly from the City with 10
years of City service. The City provides a contribution up to a
percentage of the lesser of $500 per month or the premium for the
most popular medical plan elected by the employees. The net
OPEB obligation at June 30, 2013 was $2,897,591. This amount is
expected to be paid primarily by the general fund in future years,
consistent with prior year treatment.

Police Retirement 1% Supplemental

The City of Costa Mesa joined the CalPERS 3%@age 50 plan for
police employees on December 31, 2000. Prior to that date, the
City sponsored the retirement plan providing a 2%@age 50 benefit
and the Police Officer Separation Incentive Plan providing an
additional 1%(@age 50 benefit as described in Note 15. This Plan
currently has only retired participants as all active employees were
transferred to the CalPERS 3%@age 50 plan. The net pension
obligation at June 30, 2013 for the 1% enhancement was
$2,362,297, consistent with prior year treatment.

Total other liabilities
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(10)  Capital Leases Payable

On July 27, 2009, the City of Costa Mesa entered into a 6 year
lease purchase agreement with Oshkosh Capital in the amount of
$983,045 for the purchase of a Pierce Heavy Duty Tiller Truck for
the fire department. The obligation is due in annual principal and
interest payments of $219,641. Each payment includes interest at a
rate of 3.81% annum on the unpaid balance. The last payment is to

be made on July 30, 2015. $611.,729
Total capital leases payable $611,729

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Asset Activities
Park system $ 3,183,781
Equipment 6,295,310
Fire Truck (Auto) 983,045
Subtotal 10,462,136

Less: accumulated depreciation (6,794.,564)
Total $ 3,667,572
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(10)  Capital Leases Payable, (Continued)
Amount of future minimum lease payments required for years ending:
Government Activities
Year TDA
Ending Firetruck
June 30 Principal Interest
2014 $196,334 23,307
2015 203,815 15,826
2016 211,580 8,061
Total $611,729 47,194
(11)  Debt Without Government Commitment

The following issues of bonds and certificates of participation are not reflected in the
Statement of Net Assets since they are obligations of private parties (with no government
commitment) payable entirely from and secured by non-City resources as described in the
bond resolutions and statements of the various issues:

On October 1, 1994, the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency issued $3,500,000 of
Variable Rate Demand Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 1994 Series A, to advance
refund the 1984 Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds and to make a loan to the Costa
Mesa Family Village (the Developer). The bonds were issued under and secured by an
indenture of trust by and between the Agency and First Trust of California National
Association as trustee. The Bonds were issued in denominations of $100,000 and are due
November 1, 2014. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2013 was $3,200,000.

The City of Costa Mesa Community Facilities District No. 91-1, issued $2,965,000 of
District 91-1 Special Tax Bonds on November 1, 1991. All of the bonds were acquired
by the Costa Mesa Public Financing Authority. The bonds mature from August 1, 1992
through August 1, 2021 in annual principal payments ranging from $25,000 to $265,000
and bear an interest rate of 8.30%. The bonds were issued to acquire certain
improvements to the Anton/Bristol intersection, street improvements to Anton Boulevard
and repay certain costs incurred by third parties with respect to the construction of the
Metro Fire Station and the 1-405 Access Study. The City is not liable for repayment of
these bonds, but is only acting as an agent for the property owners in collecting the
assessments, forwarding the collections to the bondholders, and initiating foreclosure
proceedings. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2013 was $1,385,000.
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(12)  Fund Balances

Fund balance consisted of the following at June 30, 2013:

Major Special Revenue Funds

Housing Special Park Nonmajor
General Authority Gas Tax HOME  Development  Funds
Nonspendable:
Pgepaiq items/loan $37.251 ) ) }
eposits - =
Inventories 41,036 - - - - -
Advance to other funds 3,059,507 - - - -
Restricted for:
Protection of persons
and property - - - - - 3,940,401
Community programs - 42,706 - 99,665 - 42,587
Public services - - 10,393,838 - - 9,115,761
Debt service - - - - - 5,667,101
Committed for:
Declared disasters 14,125,000 - - - - -
Self insurance 2,000,000 - - - - -
Assigned for:
Compensated absences 4,871,727 - - - - -
Police Retirement
1% Supplemental 2,362,297 - - - - -
OPEB 2,897,591 - - - - -
Protection of persons
and property - - - B - 743,076
Public services - - - - - 8,419,606
Unassigned 16,252,032 - - - (2,891.941) (296)
Total Fund Balance $45.646,441 42,706 10,393.838 99,665 | (2.891.941) | 27,928,236
The following governmental funds had deficits at June 30, 2013:
Major Funds:
Park Development Fund ($2,891,941)*
Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Office of Traffic Safety Fund (296)

*Management will take the appropriate action to restructure the terms of the park
development loan.
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Property Tax Calendar

(14)

Property tax revenues are reported on a modified accrual basis. Accordingly, they are
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied, provided this accrual
meets the available criteria. “Available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County of
Orange collects property taxes for the City tax liens attached annually as of 12:01 a.m. on
the first day in January preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The tax
levy covers the fiscal period July 1st to June 30th. All secured personal property taxes
and one-half of the taxes on real property are due November 1st. The second installment
is due February 1st. All taxes are delinquent if not paid as of December 10th and April
10th, respectively. Unsecured personal property taxes become due on the first of March
each year and are delinquent if not paid as of August 31st.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The City of Costa Mesa contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension
plan, except for, fire safety employees which are in a cost sharing multiple-employer
defined pension plan. PERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative
agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Copies of PERS’
annual financial report may be obtained from its executive office at 400 “P” Street,
Sacramento, California 95814.

California’s Public Employee’s Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 went into effect
on January 1, 2013, and it applies to all public retirement systems in California. PEPRA
primarily affects new members and employees hired after January 1, 2013, however,
some provisions apply to current participants. The impact of PEPRA is not significant to
current disclosures for the defined benefit plan.

Participants are required to contribute 10.47% (14% for safety employees) of their annual
covered salary. The City makes contributions required of City employees on their behalf
and for their account of 2.95% (9% for safety employees). Benefit provisions and all
other requirements are established by State statutes and City contract with employee
bargaining groups.

Under GASB 27, an employer reports an annual pension cost (APC) equal to the annual
required contribution (ARC) plus an adjustment for the cumulative difference between
the APC and the employer’s actual plan contributions for the year. The cumulative
difference is called the net pension obligation (NPO). The ARC for the period from July
1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of
June 30, 2010. The contribution rate indicated for the period is 39.428% for safety fire
and 36.286% for safety police and 21.803% of payroll for the miscellaneous plan. In
order to calculate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in financial statements
prepared as of June 30, 2013, the contribution rate is multiplied by the payroll of covered
employees that were paid from the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, (Continued)

A summary of principle assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown
below.

Valuation Date June 30, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll

Average Remaining Period 30 Years as of the Valuation Date for
safety police, and
22 Years as of the Valuation Date for
miscellaneous plan

Asset Valuation Method 15 Year Smoothed Market

Actuarial Assumptions

Investment Rate of Return  7.75% (net of administrative expenses)

Projected Salary Increases 3.55% to 13.15% depending on Age,
Service, and type of employment for
safety police, and
3.55% to 14.45% depending on Age,
Service, and type of employment for
the miscellaneous plan

Inflation 3.00%

Payroll Growth 3.25%

Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by duration of
employment coupled with an assumed
annual inflation component of 3.0%
and an annual production growth of
0.25%.

Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan
date of entry into PERS. Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as a level
percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the
operation of the plan are amortized over a 30 year rolling period, which results in an
amortization of 6% of unamortized gains and losses each year. If the plans accrued
liabilities exceed the actuarial value of plan assets, then the amortization payment on the
total unfunded liability may not be lower than the payment calculated over a period not to
exceed 30 years.

As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the miscellaneous plan was
75.1% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $225.2 million, and the
actuarial value of assets was $169 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) of $56.1 million. Covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $19.6 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 286.4%.
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(14)  Defined Benefit Pension Plan, (Continued)
As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the safety plan was 72.9%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $211.1 million, and the actuarial
value of assets was $153.9 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $57.2 million. Covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered
by the plan) was $16.6 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
344.9%.
The City’s total annual pension cost of $16.4 million for fiscal year 2013 was equal to the
City’s required and actual contributions.
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for the benefits.
Annual Pension (Employer Paid Member Contribution (EPMC))
Three-Year Trend Information
Percentage Percentage
Fiscal Police Fire of EPMC of EPMC
Year Safety Safety Contributed Miscellaneous  Contributed
6/30/11 $1,757,330 983,455 100% 1,483,728 100%
6/30/12 2,653,654 1,520,659 64% 2,155,394 28%
6/30/13 2,190,888 1,321,882 64% 1,858,699 28%
(15) _ Police 1% Supplemental Retirement Plan

Plan Description: The City of Costs Mesa joined the CalPERS 3%@age 50 benefit plan
for police employees on December 31, 2000. Prior to that date the City sponsored the
retirement plan for safety employees of the City providing a 2%@age 50 benefit plan and
the Police Officer Separation Incentive Plan provided an additional 1%(@age 50 benefit
plan. This section presents actuarial valuation information for the Police Officer
Separation Incentive Plan which has been in effect since July 1, 1993 for sworn members
of the City’s Police Department. This Plan currently has only retired participants as all
active employees were transferred to the CalPERS 3%@age 50 benefit plan. The number
of participants as June 30, 2013 was nineteen with an average age of 66.3. The average
monthly benefit being paid is $871.09. There are no trust financial statements applicable
to this plan.

Funding Policy: The City has not adopted a funding policy for this supplemental
retirement plan and accordingly plan benefits impact financial resources as benefits are
paid.
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(15)  Police 1% Supplemental Retirement Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The ARC for the plan was determined as part of the
June 30, 2012 actuarial valuation using the following methods and assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method* Level Dollar over 15 years of UAAL
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment return 4.50%

Inflation 3.00%

Retirement Age 50 and § years

Cost of living adjustments None

Future healthcare cost increases 4.5% 10 10.1%

* The initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period.

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the funded status of the plan was as follows: estimate of the life
expectancy of remaining participants.

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $2,770,839
Actuarial value of plan assets -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $2,770,839
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL 00.0%
Covered payroll $0
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 00.0%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for the benefits.

Employer Contributions: The Annual Pension Cost (APC), percentage of APC
contributed, and the NPO for the plan for the current year and each of the two proceeding
years were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual Employer Annual Net
Pension Actual Pension Cost Pension
Date Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
6/30/11 $140,503 $229,966 163.7% $2,534,919
6/30/12 136,038 229,966 169.0% 2,440,991
6/30/13 140,558 219,252 156.0% 2,362,297

68



CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

(15) _ Police 1% Supplemental Retirement Plan (Continued)
Determination of Net Pension Obligation as of June 30, 2013
Annual required contribution $ 258,003
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 109,845
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (227,290)
Annual Pension Cost 140,558
Less: Employer Contributions (219,252)
Increase (decrease) in Net Pension Obligation (78,694)
Net Pension Obligation, beginning of year 2,440,991
Net Pension Obligation, end of year $2.362,297
(16) _ Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (Defined Benefit)

Plan Description: The City administers a single-employer defined benefit plan which
provides medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses in accordance
with various labor agreements. The plan covers employees hired before January 1, 2004
who retire directly from the City with 10 years of City service. The City provides a
contribution up to a percentage of the lesser of $500 per month or the premium for the
most popular medical plan elected by the employees. The percentage varies by
retirement date and years of City service. The City provides retiree life insurance of
$1,000 for the retiree and $500 for the retiree’s spouse.

City’s Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are
established and may be amended by City Council. The contribution required to be made
under City Council and labor agreement requirements is based on a pay-as-you-go basis
(i.e., as medical insurance premiums become due). For fiscal year ended June 30, 2013,
the City contributed $1,727,148 to the plan. The City has not established a trust that is
administered by the City for the purpose of holding assets accumulated for plan benefits.
There are no trust financial statements applicable to this plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters
of GASB' Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years based on
an open group. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s
net OPEB obligation for these benefits:

Annual required contribution $2,146,578
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) 86,701
NOO amortization adjustment to ARC (79.475)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,153,804
Annual contributions (including premiums paid) (1,727.148)
Increase in net OPEB cost (expense) 426,656
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 2.470.935
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $2,897,591
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Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (Defined Benefit) (Continued)

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2013 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Schedule of Employer Postemployment Benefit Contributions

Annual

Fiscal Required Actual Percentage

Year Contribution Contribution Contributed
6/30/2011 $2,195,569 $1,679,325 76.5%
6/30/2012 2,146,578 1,609,575 75.0%
6/30/2013 2,146,578 1,727,148 80.5%

Annual OPEB Cost
% of Annual

Fiscal Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Year OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2011 $2,198,079 76.4% $1,926,696
6/30/2012 2,153,804 74.7% 2,470,935
6/30/2013 2,153,804 80.2% 2,897,591

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2012,
was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $36,429,075
Actuarial value of plan assets -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $36,429,075
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 00.0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $38.315,112
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 95.1%

Actuarial valuations for the OPEB plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and
the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
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The actuarial cost method used for this valuation is the Entry Age Normal (EAN) cost
method. Under the EAN cost method, the Normal Cost for each participant is determined
as a level percent of payroll throughout the participant’s working lifetime. The Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability was amortized over a fixed 30-year period as a level
percentage of payroll beginning with the 2011/12 fiscal year. The City, with guidance
from Actuary, has selected the discount rate (4.5%) and future medical benefit cost
increase (various ranging from 4.5% to 10.10%), with a 3% inflation rate. It is assumed
the City’s payroll will increase 3.25% per year. A June 30, 2012 GAAP based Actuarial
Valuation report can be obtained from the City’s Finance department upon request.

On January 1, 2004, the City adopted a new Retirement Health Savings Plan (RHS) for
all full-time active employees. This benefit was ratified in the City’s contractual
agreements (MOU) with the Costa Mesa Employees Association (CMCEA), Costa Mesa
Police Association (CMPA), Costa Mesa Police Management Association (CMPMA),
and the Costa Mesa Firefighters Association (CMFA). This post-employment medical
benefit is to assist employees with their qualifying medical expenses or premiums upon
retirement or separation from the City with no minimum age requirement. The RHS plan
is a defined contribution plan for all full and part-time employees at the City. Under this
plan, the employee and the City each make a mandatory 1% of base pay contribution. If
the employee separates from the City prior to the 10-year vesting period, the employee
forfeits his or her share of the City’s contribution. The City has no payment obligations
once the employee separates from the City. Per a side letter agreement with employees,
the RHS program was suspended for 52 pay periods starting November 7, 2010. The
City’s contribution to the defined contribution post retirement plan for the year ended
June 30, 2013 was $0.

Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds at the function level (level
of budgetary control) are as follows at June 30, 2013:

Function Expenditures  Appropriations Excess
Nonmajor Special Revenue
Funds:
Supplemental Law Protection of Person
Enforcement Services and Property $232,517 212,615 19,902
Protection of Person
Narcotics Forfeiture Fund and Property 1,157,038 944,705 212,333
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Risk Management

The City participates in the California Municipal Excess Liability (“CAMEL”) Program.
The membership of CAMEL consists of approximately 21 cities with similar interests
and needs regarding liability insurance. Premiums are based upon the losses incurred.
The Board of Directors set the premiums for each participant and each participant is
represented on the Board. Premiums are based upon the losses incurred by each member
and are not affected by losses incurred by other members.

In the Self-Insurance Workers’ Compensation/General Liability/Unemployment Internal
Service Fund, the City has recorded liabilities of $12,401,539 for lawsuits and other
claims arising in the ordinary course of business. The City is self-insured for the first
$2,000,000 of each claim arising for workers’ compensation and has purchased outside
insurance coverage in excess of the $2,000,000 up to an unlimited maximum. The City is
self-insured for the first $2,000,000 of each claim arising for general liability. The City
has purchased outside insurance coverage in excess of the $2,000,000 up to a maximum
of $20,000,000 per occurrence. For the past three years, claim payments have not
exceeded the amount of applicable insurance coverage. The City has estimated losses for
claims and judgments and has established liabilities of $8,611,900 for workers’
compensation and $3,789,639 for general liability. Losses for claims incurred but not
reported are recorded when the probable amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
These amounts represent estimates of amounts to be paid for reported claims and
incurred but not yet reported claims based upon past experience, modified for current
trends and information. While the ultimate amount of losses incurred through June 30,
2013 is dependent on future developments, based upon information from the City
Attorney, the City’s claims administrators and others involved with the administration of
the programs, City management believes the accrual is adequate to cover such losses. The
City is contingently liable for additional losses not reported in the accompanying
financial statements in the range of approximately $25,000 to $2,000,000 for which the
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is only reasonably possible, as determined by legal
counsel.

Changes in claims payable for the past two fiscal years are as follows:

Claims
Incurred and
Fiscal Beginning Changes in Claim Ending
Year Balance Estimates Payments Balance
2011-2012 $9,945,560 $3,413,289 ($3,568,444) $9,790,405
2012-2013 9,790,405 5,934,071 (3,322,937) 12,401,539
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The City and its component units have one debt issuance outstanding that is collateralized
by the pledging of certain revenues. The amount and term of the remainder of this
commitment is indicated in the debt service to maturity table presented in the
accompanying notes. The purpose for which the proceeds of the related debt issuance
was utilized is disclosed in the debt description in Note 8. For the current year, debt
service payments as a percentage of the pledged gross revenue (or net of certain expense
where so required by the debt agreement) are indicated in the table below. This
percentage also approximates the relationship of debt service to pledged revenue for the
remainder of the term of the commitment:

Annual Amount of Annual Debt Service Debt Service as a
Description of Pledged Revenue (net Payments (of all debt Percentage of
Pledged Revenue of expenses) secured by this revenue) Pledged Revenue

Mello-Roos CFD 91-1 $ 244915 $221,011 90.24 %

Participant in Joint Venture

Airborne Law Enforcement Services “ABLE” was created as a joint venture involving
the City of Costa Mesa and the City of Newport Beach, collectively referring to as
“Member Agencies”. The purpose of ABLE was to use equipment and personnel of the
member agencies in order to provide regional helicopter law enforcement services to their
respective jurisdictions. In February 2011, ABLE’s Board of Governors made a decision
to dissolve the joint venture and commencing July 1, 2011, member agencies ceased to
contribute to the operation. On January 17, 2013, the ABLE Board of Directors
authorized the distribution of the remaining funds to each member agency of $2,551,815.
ABLE financial statements through the date of dissolution can be obtained at Costa Mesa
City Hall.

73



(22)

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

Recent Legislation Effecting California Redevelopment Agency

On June 29, 2011, Assembly Bills 1x 26 (the “Dissolution Act”) and 1x 27 were enacted
as part of the fiscal year 2011-12 state budget package which dissolved Redevelopment.
On June 27, 2012, as part of the fiscal year 2012-13 state budget package, the Legislature
passed and the Governor signed AB 1484, which made technical and substantive
amendments to the Dissolution Act based on experience to-date at the state and local
level in implementing the Dissolution Act.

Under the Dissolution Act, each California redevelopment agency (each a “Dissolved
RDA”™) was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and the sponsoring community that formed
the Dissolved RDA, together with other designated entities, have initiated the process
under the Dissolution Act to unwind the affairs of the Dissolved RDA. A Successor
Agency was created for each Dissolved RDA which is the sponsoring community of the
Dissolved RDA unless it elected not to serve as the Successor Agency. On February
1,2012 pursuant to City Council Resolution 12-12, the City elected to serve as the
Successor Agency of the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency.

The Dissolution Act also created oversight boards which monitor activities of Successor
Agencies. The roles of Successor Agencies and oversight boards are to administer the
wind down of each Dissolved RDA which includes making payments due on enforceable
obligations, disposing of the assets (other than housing assets), and remitting
unencumbered balances of the Dissolved RDAs to County Auditor-Controllers for
distribution to affected taxing entities.

The Dissolution Act allowed the sponsoring community that formed the Dissolved RDA
to elect to assume housing functions and take over the certain housing assets of the
Dissolved RDA. If the sponsoring community did not elect to become the Successor
Housing Agency and assume the Dissolved RDA’s housing functions, such housing
functions and all related housing assets were to be transferred to the local housing
authority in the jurisdiction. AB 1484 modified and provided some clarifications on the
treatment of housing assets under the Dissolution Act. The City elected on January 17,
2012 pursuant to City Council Resolution 12-3 to serve as the Housing Successor
Agency.

After the date of dissolution, housing assets, obligations, and activities of the Dissolved
RDA were transferred to and were reported in the Costa Mesa Housing Authority Special
Revenue Fund in the financial statements of the City. All other assets, obligations, and
activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and are reported in a fiduciary
fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.

The Dissolution Act and AB 1484 also establish roles for the County Auditor-Controller
(CAC), the California Department of Finance (the “DOF”), and the California State
Controller’s office in the dissolution process and the satisfaction of enforceable
obligations of the Dissolved RDAs.

74



(22)

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2013

Recent Legislation Effecting California Redevelopment Agency (continued)

The County Auditor-Controller was charged with establishing a Redevelopment Property
Tax Trust Fund (the “RPTTF”) for each Successor Agency and depositing into the
RPTTF for each six-month period the amount of property taxes that would have been
redevelopment property tax increment had the Dissolved RDA not been dissolved.
Deposits into the RPTTF fund are to be used to pay Successor Agency amounts due on
enforceable obligations for the upcoming six-month period.

Successor Agencies are required to prepare a recognized obligation payment schedule
(the “ROPS”) approved by the oversight board setting forth the amounts due for each
enforceable obligation during each six month period. The ROPS are submitted to the
DOF for approval. The County Auditor-Controller will make payments to Successor
Agencies from the RPTTF funds based on the ROPS amounts approved by the DOF. The
ROPS are prepared in advance for enforceable obligations due over the next six months.

The process of making RPTTF deposits to be used to pay enforceable obligations of the
Dissolved RDA will continue until all enforceable obligations have been paid in full and
all non-housing assets of the Dissolved RDA have been liquidated.

As part of the dissolution process, AB1484 required Successor Agencies to have due
diligence reviews of both the low and moderate income housing funds and all other funds
to be completed by October 15, 2012 and January 15, 2013 to compute funds (cash)
which were not needed by the Successor Agencies to be retained to pay for existing
enforceable obligations. These funds were to be remitted to the CAC after the DOF
completed its reviews of the due diligence reviews. The Costa Mesa Successor Agency
made payments to the CAC in the amount of $892,500 on December 19, 2012 and
$1,500,920 on December 21, 2012 for the low and moderate income housing fund and
$2,492,747 on May 1, 2013 for all other funds as a result of the due diligence reviews.

The DOF issued a Finding of Completion on May 24, 2013 in which DOF concurred that
the Successor Agency had made full payments of any payments required as a result of the
due diligence reviews. The Finding of Completion allowed the placement of loan
agreements between the former Redevelopment Agency and the City on the ROPS, as an
enforceable obligation, provided the oversight board made a finding that the loan was for
legitimate redevelopment purposes pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34191.4.
As of June 30, 2013, the loan agreement has not been brought before the oversight board.

The State Controller of the State of California has been directed to review the propriety
of any transfers of assets between Dissolved RDAs and other public bodies that occurred
after January 1,2011. If the public body that received such transfers was not
contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those
assets, the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to the
public body designated as the Successor Agency. The City made a payment to the CAC
in the amount of $2,492,747 on May 1, 2013 which included a credit of $116,867 to the
Successor Agency.
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Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the
Dissolved RDA due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the
Successor Agency under the requirements of the Dissolution Act and AB 1484. The DOF
has disputed this conclusion. Accordingly, the City filed a lawsuit on October 9, 2013, in
the Sacramento Superior Court, Case No. 34-2013-80001675, against the DOF and the
Orange County Auditor-Controller. The lawsuit seeks, among other relief, orders
requiring the DOF to approve annual loan repayments the Dissolved RDA owes to the
City on all future ROPS submitted by the Successor Agency and requiring the Orange
County Auditor-Controller to refund the $2,492,747 payment the City made on May 1,
2013. The City’s positions on these issues are not positions of settled law and there is
considerable legal uncertainty regarding the issues. It is reasonably possible that a legal
determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would
resolve this issue unfavorably to the City.

Successor Agency Disclosures

The liabilities of the former Redevelopment Agency were transferred to the Successor
Agency from the City of Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012 as a
result of the dissolution of the former Redevelopment Agency. The City is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the assets and liabilities. Disclosures related to the long-term
liabilities are as follows:

Bonds Payable

On October 1, 2003, the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency issued $7,470,000 Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds to refund the $9,955,000 Downtown Redevelopment Project
1993 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds. The original bonds were issued to finance a
portion of costs associated with implementing the Redevelopment Plan which included
the refurbishment of the Downtown Redevelopment Project Area. The bonds issued
consist of serial bonds maturing from 2004 to 2017 in semi-annual installments ranging
from $450,000 to $670,000. Interest is payable on April 1 and October 1, commencing on
April 1, 2004 at rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. Bonds maturing on or after October 1,
2014 are subject to optional redemption, in whole or in part from among maturities as
selected by the Agency on October 1, 2013. The bonds are secured by tax revenue.

The amount required for bond reserve for the 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds is

$704,300. The City has $704,300 on reserve with the fiscal agent at June 30, 2013. The
principal balance outstanding at June 30, 2013 is $3,070,000.
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(23)  Successor Agency Disclosures (continued)
The annual debt service requirements for the Redevelopment Agency 2003 Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds as of June 30, 2013 are as follows:
Year Ending Governmental Activities
June 30 Principal Interest
2014 $565,000 123,075
2015 590,000 100,712
2016 610,000 77,450
2017 635,000 49,375
2018 670,000 16,750
Total 3,070,000 367,362
(24) _ Extraordinary Loss on General Fund Advance to Successor Agency

Both the government-wide and fund financial statements reflect an extraordinary loss of
$11,888,159. This amount consists of an outstanding balance of $9,278,545 on an
advance from the General Fund to the previous Redevelopment Agency, now held by the
Successor Agency, and a demand payment of $2,609,614 made by the City to reimburse
previous debt service payments received from the Redevelopment Agency and Successor
Agency. This advance represented a note that was originally between the General Fund
and the Redevelopment Agency with interest at a stated rate of 8%.

The City made a conservative decision to write-off the advance pursuant to the California
Department of Finance’s (DOF) determination letter which disallowed the advance as an
enforceable obligation subsequent to the previous approvals of the debt service payments
by the DOF. The disallowance resulted in the termination of current and future funding
of debt service payments which were previously secured with property tax revenue.

In response, the City filed a lawsuit against the DOF and the Orange County Auditor-
Controller in October 2013 in the Sacramento Superior Court to dispute the disallowance
of the advance (see Note 22). If the lawsuit results in a favorable opinion for the City, the
advance receivable in the General Fund will be reinstated. The City has another avenue
in which it can revive the advance. In a Finding of Completion letter dated May 24, 2013,
the City was provided with an option that could result in the reinstatement of part of the
advance should the City and Successor Agency pursue this path. To date, action has not
been taken in regard to this option. The City will consider all available options to remedy
this situation.

77



78



CITY OF COSTA MESA
CALIFORNIA

N

REQUIRED

SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION




CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Schedule of Funding Progress

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

CalPERS Miscellaneous Pension Plan

(dollar amounts in thousands)

Entry Age Unfunded
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Liability/
Valuation Accrued Value (Excess Funded
Date Liability of Assets Assets) Status
6/30/10 $202,584 $158,819 $43,765 78.4%
6/30/11 217,133 165,287 51,845 76.1%
6/30/12 225,186 169,040 56,147 75.1%
CalPERS Safety Pension Plan
(dollar amounts in thousands)
Entry Age Unfunded
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Liability/
Valuation Accrued Value (Excess Funded
Date Liability of Assets Assets) Status
6/30/10 $190,631 $139,146 $51,485 73.0%
6/30/11 204,751 146,669 58,082 71.6%
6/30/12 211,118 153,879 57,239 72.9%
1% Police Supplemental Pension Plan
(dollar amounts in thousands)
Entry Age Unfunded
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Liability/
Valuation Accrued Value (Excess Funded
Date Liability of Assets Assets) Status
6/30/10 $2,911 5- $2,911 00.0%
6/30/11 2,771 - 2,771 00.0%
6/30/12 2,771 - 2,771 00.0%
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan
(dollar amounts in thousands)
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded
Valuation Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio
6/30/10 $- $35,492 $35,492 0%
6/30/11 - 36,429 36,429 0%
6/30/12 - 36,429 36,429 0%

*UAAL refers to unfunded actuarial accrued liability.
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Annual
Covered

Payroll

$24,115
20,235
19,601

Annual
Covered

Payroll

$17,859
17,613
16,594

Annual
Covered

Payroll

N/A
N/A
N/A

Covered
Payroll

$49,021
38,315
38,315

*UUAL
Asa% of

Payroll

181.5%
256.2%
286.4%

*UUAL
As a % of

Payroll

288.3%
329.8%
344.9%

*UUAL
As a % of

Payroll

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll

72.4%
95.1%
95.1%
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for all general revenues of the City not specifically levied or
collected for some special purpose, and for expenditures related to the rendering of general services by
the City. The General Fund is used to account for all resources not required to be accounted for in
another fund.

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Housing Authority Fund

Established pursuant to the Health and Safety Code, Section 34176(a). The primary purpose of the
Housing Authority is to promote affordable housing for families of low and moderate income within
the City.

Special Gas Tax Fund
Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds used for construction and maintenance
of the City’s road network system. Financing is provided by the City’s share of State gasoline taxes.

HOME Program Fund

Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received under the Federal Home
Investment Partnership Program of the Department of Housing and Urban Development. These
revenues must be expended for acquisition, rehabilitation, and new construction of rental housing.
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Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales tax
Property tax
Transient occupancy tax
Franchise tax
Business license tax

Total taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits

Intergovernmental:
Motor vehicle in-lieu

Grants and other reimbursements

Total intergovernmental

Charges for services
Rental

Investment income
Return on equity
Settlements
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
General government:

City council

Chief executive officer:
Administration
City clerk
Personnel services
Central services

Risk management services

City attorney
Financial services and

information technology

Development services:
Administration
Facilities and equipment
maintenance
Non-departmental

Total general government

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

82

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

$ 44,300,000 45,000,000 45,830,107 830,107 42,234,308
21,470,000 21,530,000 23,172,595 1,642,595 20,591,798
6,500,000 6,700,000 7,257,695 557,695 6,524,510
4,400,000 4,400,000 4,818,972 418,972 4,471,326
850,000 850,000 917.633 67,633 888,967
77,520,000 78,480,000 81,997,002 3,517,002 74,710,909
1,773,000 1,733,000 1,997.057 264,057 1,903,361
1,675,000 1,525,000 1,506,940 (18,060) 1,537,454
9,000,000 8,960,000 8,814,644 (145,356) 8,594,277
807,085 857,336 808,486 (48,850) 841,652
9,807,085 9,817,336 9,623,130 (194,206) 9,435,929
3,443,750 3,407,050 3,509,616 102,566 3,690,432
2,844,500 2,809,500 2,786,330 (23,170) 2,861,208
1,008,500 1,008,500 109,930 (898,570) 570,715
2,400,000 2,500,000 2,551,815 51,815 -
- - 1,452,623 1,452,623 -

703,100 718.100 517,920 (200,180) 071,949
101,174,935 101,998,486 106,052,363 4,053,877 95,681,957
313,010 438,010 440,740 (2,730) 222,285
1,794,845 1,810,388 2,167,008 (356,620) 1,734,719
492,891 508,345 571,563 (63,218) 478,130
819,392 819,392 888,735 (69,343) 982,304
391,378 391,378 369,272 22,106 459,510
2,375,273 2,375,273 2,295,232 80,041 2,410,541
803,000 803,000 1,037,305 (234,305) 955,916
4,706,284 4,941,059 4,932,053 9,006 4,665,547
689,305 689,305 585,317 103,988 474,896
9,406,117 9,435,724 8,520,558 915,166 8,590,539
400,000 400,000 175,000 225,000 -
22,191,495 22,611,874 21,982,783 629,091 20,974,387
(Continued)



CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Protection of persons and property:

Police protection:
Police protection
Communication services
Fire protection
Building and safety

Total protection of persons

(Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget

and property

Community programs:
Community recreation
Planning

Total community programs

Public services:
Administration
Engineering
Transportation

Total public services

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance, before

extraordinary item

Extraordinary item:

Loss on advance to Successor Agency

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
35,015,745 34,998,312 33,041,745 1,956,567 33,274,295
4,069,674 4,270,772 3,292,594 978,178 3,404,952
20,425,312 20,504,979 19,813,584 691,395 19,727,686
1,759,380 1,931,938 2,002,352 (70,414) 1,500,498
61,270,111 61,706,001 58,150,275 3,555,726 57,907,431
3,472,247 3,491,345 3,313,730 177,615 3,110,662
944,572 1,715,908 1,186,926 528,982 831,871
4,416,819 5,207,253 4,500,656 706,597 3,942,533
1,563,015 1,570,781 1,557,274 13,507 1,134,576
1,396,453 1,407,003 1,429,548 (22,545) 1,576,901
2,350,121 2,402,125 2,190,329 211,796 2,212,211
5,309,589 5,379.909 5,177,151 202,758 4,923,688
1,647,050 1,647,050 257,050 1,390,000 540,739
117,275 117,275 47,610 69.665 25.434
1,764,325 1,764,325 304,660 1,459,665 566,173
94,952,339 96,669,362 90,115,525 6,553,837 88,314,212
6,222,596 5,329,124 15,936,838 10,607,714 7,367,745
- - 148 148 7,059
(6,167,366) (6,167,366) (6,212,312) (44,946) (4,840,408)
(6,167,366) (6,167,366) (6,212,164) (44,798) (4,833,349)
55,230 (838,242) 9,724,674 10,562,916 2,534,396
- - (11,888,159)  (11,888,159) -
55,230 (838,242) (2,163,485) (1,325,243) 2,534,396
47,809,926 47,809,926 47,809,926 - 45,275,530
$ 47.865.156 46,971,684 45,646,441 1.325.243) 47,809,926

83



CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Special Gas Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - -
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental 3,045,000 3,045,000 2,749,407 (295,593) 3,277,043
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental - " = 3 -
Investment income 75,000 75,000 101,206 26,206 182,538
Miscellaneous - - - - 7,000
Total revenues 3,120,000 3,120,000 2,850,613 (269,387) 3,466,581
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property - - - - -
Community programs - - - - -
Public services 4362,844 12,799,927 5,585,197 7,214,730 2,491,103
Total expenditures 4,362,844 12,799,927 5,585,197 7,214,730 2,491,103
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,242,844)  (9,679,927)  (2,734,584) 6,945,343 975,478
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - 250,000
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) B - - - 250,000
Net change in fund balance (1,242,844)  (9,679,927)  (2,734,584) 6,945,343 1,225,478
Fund balance at beginning of year 13,128,422 13,128,422 13,128,422 - 11,902,944
Fund balance at end of year $ 11,885,578 3,448,495 10,393,838 6,945,343 13,128,422
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
HOME Program Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ = - - . s
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental 665,085 665,085 216,973 (448,112) 599,391
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental = - - - s
Investment income - - - - 450
Miscellaneous - - 151,104 151,104 123,988
Total revenues 665,085 665,085 368,077 (297,008) 723,829
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property - - - - -
Community programs 461,320 471,320 328,714 142,606 544,252
Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures 461,320 471,320 328,714 142,606 544,252
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 203,765 193,765 39,363 (154,402) 179,577
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in B - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance 203,765 193,765 39,363 (154,402) 179,577
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year 60,302 60,302 60,302 - (119,275)
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ 264,067 254,067 99,665 (154,402) 60,302
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

Budgetary Data

Annual budgets are legally adopted for all governmental funds on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles, except for the following funds for which annual
budgets were not adopted:

Special Revenue Fund:
Rental Rehabilitation Program Fund
Housing Authority Fund
Debt Service Fund:
Financing Authority Debt Service Fund
Capital Project Fund:
Golf Course Improvements Fund

The City Council adopts each year’s budget submitted by the Chief Executive Officer
prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year. Public hearings are conducted prior to its
adoption by the Council. Supplemental appropriations, where required during the period,
are also approved by the Council. Interfunctional budget changes are approved by the
Chief Executive Officer. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the
function level. During the year ended June 30, 2013, supplementary appropriations were
made totaling $23,620,508. At fiscal year-end all operating budget appropriations lapse.
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CALIFORNIA

SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULES




Assets

Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agent

Due from other governments
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Loans receivable

Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retentions payable
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenues
Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Advances to other funds
Restricted for:
Protection of persons and property
Community programs
Public services
Debt service
Assigned for:
Protection of persons and property
Public services
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Special Debt Capital Totals

Revenue Service Projects 2013 2012
$ 5,002,507 1,385,000 17,280,197 23,667,704 19,233,982
- 4,282,101 - 4,282,101 5,570,697
377,329 - 1,967,518 2,344,847 2,545,528
- - 10,568 10,568 30,570
6,915 - 25,669 32,584 60,630
935,429 - - 935,429 984,861
150,766 - - 150,766 156,283
$ 6.472.946 5,667,101 19.283.952 31.423.999 28.582.551
$ 134,466 - 628,764 763,230 550,694
392,235 - 9,883 402,118 733,347
- - 129,401 129,401 160,770
113,477 - - 113,477 114,872
640,178 - 768,048 1,408.226 1,559.683
1,095,152 - 992,385 2,087.537 2,531,319
3,940,401 - - 3,940,401 1,905,217
42,587 - - 42,587 41,592
754,924 - 8,360,837 9,115,761 8,374,018
- 5,667,101 - 5,667,101 7,075,697
- - 743,076 743,076 737,359
- - 8,419,606 8,419,606 6,357,807
(296) - - (296) (141
4,737.616 5,667,101 17,523,519 27,928,236 24,491,549
¥ 6,472,946 5.667.101 _19.283.952 _ 31.423.999 28,582,551
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Special Debt Capital Totals
Revenue Service Projects 2013 2012
Revenues:
Taxes $ 913,688 - 20,159 933,847 1,816,084
Fines and forfeits 2,976,300 - - 2,976,300 1,970,727
Intergovernmental 1,465,497 - 5,140,959 6,606,456 6,526,578
Charges for services - - 661,510 661,510 450,320
Rental - - 102,607 102,607 103,248
Investment income 41,128 125,280 144,695 311,103 409,870
Miscellaneous 44,678 - 30,000 74.678 246,563
Total revenues 5,441,291 125,280 6,099,930 11,666,501 11,523,390
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property 2,317,816 - - 2,317,816 2,085,933
Community programs 1,043,517 - - 1,043,517 1,513,524
Public services 8,914 - 6,010,489 6,019,403 6,148,366
Redevelopment - - - - 911,704
Debt service: - - -
Principal - 3,615,000 - 3,615,000 3,985,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 1,446,242 - 1,446,242 2,479,784
Total expenditures 3,370,247 5,061,242 6,010,489 14,441,978 17,124,311
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 2,071,044 (4,935,962) 89,441 (2,775,477) (5,600,921)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 94,946 3,527,366 2,590,000 6,212,312 4,842,109
Transfers out - - (148) (148) (258,760)
Total other financing
sources (uses) 94,946 3,527,366 2,589,852 6,212,164 4,583,349
Net change in fund balances, before
extraordinary item 2,165,990 (1,408,596) 2,679,293 3,436,687 (1,017,572)
Extraordinary item:
Gain (loss) on transfer to successor
agency - - - - 5,801,654
Net change in fund balances 2,165,990 (1,408,596) 2,679,293 3,436,687 4,784,082
Fund balances at beginning of year 2,571,626 7,075,697 14,844,226 24,491,549 19,707,467
Fund balances at end of year $ 4,737,616 5,667,101 17,523,519 27,928,236 24,491,549




NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other earmarked
revenues sources (other than expendable trust or for major capital projects) that are restricted by law or
administrative action to_expenditures for specified purposes. The following have been classified as
nonmajor governmental funds in the accompanying fund financial statements.

Proposition 172 Fund i .

Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of voter-approved one-half cent ge_rmanent
increase in the state sales tax in November 1993. These revenues must be expended for public safety
purposes.

Air C{pali?' Improvement Fund
Established to account for the City’s share of funds received under Health & Safeg Code 44223 (AB
2766) to finance mobile source airpollution reduction programs consistent with the California Clean Air

Act of 1988.

Community Development Fund

This fund accounts for revenues received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
These revenues must be expended to accomplish one of the following objectives: elimination of slum or
bllgtl;t of benefit to low and moderate income persons, or to meet certain urgent community development
needs.

S_upglgmental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF . . .

Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received under the State Citizen’s Option

for Public S.afelg COPS) Program allocated Sursuant to Government Code Section 30061 enacted by

Assembly Bill 3229, Chapter 134 of the 1996 Statutes. These COPS/SLESF funds are allocated based on

Eopulatlon and can only be spent for “front line municipal police services” as per Government Code
ection 30061(c)(2).

Rental Rehabilitation Program Fund ]
Established to account for revenues received from the Deﬁartment of Housing and Urban Development
under Section 17 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937. These revenues must be expended to provide

assistance to rehabilitate primarily privately-owned residential rental property.

Narcotics Forfeiture Fund ) ) ) _

Established to account for receipt and disbursement of narcotic forfeitures received from County, State,

%rlliij ggdserallage;é:lies pursuant to Section 11470 of State Health and Safety Code and Federal Statute
ection .

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund o i
Established to account for Federal grant monies provided by the 1998 Appropriations Act, Public Law
105-119. Funds are restricted for projects utilized to reduce crime and improve public safety.

Office of Traffic Safety Fund
Established to account for State %lrant monies received from the Office of Traffic Safety. Funds are
restricted for projects utilized to enhance traffic safety and to reduce drunk driving within the City.

Homelessness Prevention Fund .

Established to account for revenues and disbursements of funds received under the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and is administered by the Federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). Funds for this program are to be used to provide homelessness prevention
assistance to households who would otherwise become homeless as well as to provide assistance to
rapidly re-house persons who have recently become homeless.
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Assets

Cash and investments

Due from other governments
Interest receivable

Loans receivable

Advances to other funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Retentions payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Prepaid items/deposits
Restricted for:

Protection of persons or property

Community programs
Public services
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Supplemental
Air Law
Proposition Quality Community Enforcement
172 Improvement Development Services
$§ 499,211 721,340 - 4,158
70,781 34,985 216,695 -
690 997 - 7
- - 629,546 -
- - 150,766 -
$§ 570,682 757,322 997,007 4,165
$ - 2,398 119,194 -
19,615 - 11,411 4,165
- - 60,528 -
19,615 2,398 191,133 4,165
- - 780,313 -
551,067 - - -
- - 25,561 -
- 754,924 - -
551,067 754,924 25,561 -
$ 570,682 757,322 997,007 4,165
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Local Law

Rental Enforcement Office of
Rehabilitation  Narcotics Block Traffic Homelessness Totals
Program Forfeiture Grant Safety Prevention 2013 2012
17,002 3,729,706 31,090 - - 5,002,507 3,215,629
= 1,415 - 53,453 - 377,329 377,109
24 5,154 43 - - 6,915 10,368
305,883 - - - - 935,429 984,861
- - - - - 150,766 156,283
322,909 3,736,275 31,133 53,453 - 6,472,946 4,744,250
- 12,074 - 800 - 134,466 176,895
- 357,044 - - - 392,235 722,397
- 5 = = . = 9,105
- = - 52,949 = 113,477 114,872
- 369,118 - 53,749 - 640,178 1,023,269
305,883 8,956 - < = 1,095,152 1,149,355
- 3,358,201 31,133 - - 3,940,401 1,905,217
17,026 - - - - 42,587 41,592
- - = - - 754,924 624,958
. : - (296) - (296) (141)
17,026 3,358,201 31,133 (296) - 4,737,616 2,571,626
322,909 3,736,275 31,133 53,453 - 6,472,946 4,744,250
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Revenues:
Taxes
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmental
Rental
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property
Community programs
Public services
Redevelopment

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances, before
extraordinary item

Extraordinary item:
Loss on transfer to successor agency

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit) at beginning of year

Fund balances (deficit) at end of year

Supplemental

Air Law

Proposition Quality Community Enforcement

172 Improvement Development Services

$ 913,688 - 3 =
- 133,608 1,012,378 136,896

3,834 5,272 4,632 7

- - 10,476 -

917,522 138,880 1,027,486 136,903
745,350 - - 232,517

- - 1,043,517 -

- 8,914 - -

745,350 8,914 1,043,517 232,517
172,172 129,966 (16,031) (95,614)

- > - 94,805

- - - 94,805
172,172 129,966 (16,031) (809)
172,172 129,966 (16,031) (809)
378,895 624,958 41,592 809
$ 551,067 754,924 25,561 -
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Local Law

Rental Enforcement Office of
Rehabilitation  Narcotics Block Traffic Homelessness Totals
Program Forfeiture Grant Safety Prevention 2013 2012
- - - - - 913,688 843,542
- 2,976,300 - - - 2,976,300 1,970,727
- - 39,066 143,549 - 1,465,497 2,091,513
= - - - - - 10,555
26 27,208 149 - - 41,128 46,664
17,000 17,202 - - - 44,678 48,933
17,026 3,020,710 39,215 143,549 - 5,441,291 5,011,934
- 1,157,038 39,066 143,845 - 2,317,816 2,085,933
= - - - - 1,043,517 1,513,524
= = = - - 8,914 164,012
- - - = & s 232,886
- 1,157,038 39,066 143,845 - 3,370,247 3,996,355
17,026 1,863,672 149 (296) - 2,071,044 1,015,579
= s - - 141 94,946 33,804
- - 2 = = - (6,991)
= = o - 141 94,946 26,813
17,026 1,863,672 149 (296) 141 2,165,990 1,042,392
. Z 2 . - B (2,823,892)
17,026 1,863,672 149 (296) 141 2,165,990 (1,781,500)
- 1,494,529 30,984 - (141) 2,571,626 4,353,126
17,026 3,358,201 31,133 (296) - 4,737,616 2,571,626
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Proposition 172 Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 860,000 860,000 913,688 53,688 843,542
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental % < . - z
Charges for services - - - - B
Rental S - u - =
Investment income 1,000 1,000 3,834 2,834 4,909
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total revenues 861,000 861,000 917,522 56,522 848,451
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property 882,357 882,357 745,350 137,007 965,897
Community programs - - - - -
Public services - = 3 = -
Total expenditures 882,357 882,357 745,350 137,007 965,897
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (21,357) (21,357) 172,172 193,529 (117,446)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in = - = - -
Transfers out - - - B -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (21,357) (21,357) 172,172 193,529 (117,446)
Fund balance at beginning of year 378,895 378,895 378,895 - 496,341
Fund balance at end of year $ 357,538 357,538 551,067 193,529 378,895
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Air Quality Improvement Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - -
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental 140,000 140,000 133,608 (6,392) 149,631
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental - - - - -
Investment income 4,000 4,000 5,272 1,272 8,350
Miscelianeous - - - - 714
Total revenues 144,000 144,000 138,880 (5,120) 158,695
Expenditures:
Current;
Protection of persons and property - - - - -
Community programs - - - - -
Public services 367,200 591,250 8,914 582,336 164,012
Total expenditures 367,200 591,250 8,914 582,336 164,012
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (223,200) (447,250) 129,966 577,216 (5,317)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out B - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (223,200) (447,250) 129,966 577,216 (5,317)
Fund balance at beginning of year 624,958 624,958 624,958 - 630,275
Fund balance at end of year $ 401,758 177,708 754,924 577,216 624,958
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Community Development Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3 - - - -
Fines and forfeits - - - = -
Intergovernmental 1,230,892 1,230,892 1,012,378 (218,514) 1,364,809
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental - - - - 10,555
Investment income - - 4,632 4,632 4,915
Miscellaneous - - 10,476 10,476 15,129
Total revenues 1,230,892 1,230,892 1,027,486 (203,406) 1,395,408
Expenditures:
Current;
Protection of persons and property - - - - -
Community programs 1,344,663 1,553,542 1,043,517 510,025 1,358,172
Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,344,663 1,553,542 1,043,517 510,025 1,358,172
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (113,771) (322,650) (16,031) 306,619 37,236
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (113,771) (322,650) (16,031) 306,619 37,236
Fund balance at beginning of year 41,592 41,592 41,592 - 4,356
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ (72,179) (281,058) 25,561 306,619 41,592




CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - “
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental 125,000 125,000 136,896 11,896 182,481
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental - - -
Investment income - - 7 7 -
Miscellaneous - - = - -
Total revenues 125,000 125,000 136,903 11,903 182,481
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property 212,615 212,615 232,517 (19,902) 220,802
Community programs - - - - -
Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures 212,615 212,615 232,517 (19,902) 220,802
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (87,615) (87,615) (95,614) (7,999) (38,321)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 50,000 50,000 94,805 44,805 33,226
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 50,000 50,000 94,805 44,805 33,226
Net change in fund balance (37,615) (37,615) (809) 36,806 (5,095)
Fund balance at beginning of year 809 809 809 - 5,904
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $  (36,806) (36,806) - 36,806 809
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Narcotics Forfeiture Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes - = s - -
Fines and forfeits 475,000 475,000 2,976,300 2,501,300 1,970,727
Intergovernmental - - - - 20,471
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental - - - - -
Investment income 7,250 7,250 27,208 19,958 21,575
Miscellaneous - - 17,202 17,202 4,400
Total revenues 482,250 482,250 3,020,710 2,538,460 2,017,173
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property 513,300 944,705 1,157,038 (212,333) 699,408
Community programs - - - - -
Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures 513,300 944,705 1,157,038 (212,333) 699,408
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (31,050) (462,455) 1,863,672 2,326,127 1,317,765
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in s & s - -
Transfers out - - B - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - B -
Net change in fund balance (31,050) (462,455) 1,863,672 2,326,127 1,317,765
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,494,529 1,494,529 1,494,529 - 176,764
Fund balance at end of year 1,463,479 1,032,074 3,358,201 2,326,127 1,494,529
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Revenues:
Taxes
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Rental
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property
Community programs
Public services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit) at end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

$ - 5 . 3 -
- 20,801 39,066 18,265 1,565

- - 149 149 506

- 20,801 39,215 18,414 2,071

- 53,705 39,066 14,639 -

- 53,705 39,066 14,639 -

- (32,904) 149 33,053 2,071

- (32,904) 149 33,053 2,071

30,984 30,984 30,984 - 28,913

$ 30,984 (1,920) 31,133 33,053 30,984
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Office of Traffic Safety Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - -
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental - 160,000 143,549 (16,451) 199,356
Charges for services - B - - -
Rental - - - - -
Investment income - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total revenues - 160,000 143,549 (16,451) 199,356
Expenditures:
Current;
Protection of persons and property - 160,000 143,845 16,155 199,826
Community programs - - - - -
Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures - 160,000 143,845 16,155 199,826
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (296) (296) (470)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - (6,991)
Total other financing sources (uses) B - - - (6,991)
Net change in fund balance - - (296) (296) (7,461)
Fund balance at beginning of year - - - - 7,461
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ - - (296) (296) -
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Homelessness Prevention Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - -
Fines and forfeits - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - 173,200
Charges for services - - - - -
Rental - - - - -
Investment income - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total revenues - - - - 173,200
Expenditures:
Current:
Protection of persons and property - - - - 2
Community programs - - - - 155,352
Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures - - - - 155,352
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - - - 17,848
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - 141 141 -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 141 141 -
Net change in fund balance - - 141 141 17,848
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year (141) (141) (141) - (17,989)
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ (141) (141) - 141 (141)
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Service Funds are used to account for accumulated resources for, and payment of, general
long-term debt.

The following has been classified as a nonmajor fund in the accompanying fund financial
statements:

Financing Authority Debt Service Fund

To accumulate monies for payment of the 2007 Certificates of Participation (COP), 2006
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2003 Refunding Certificates of Participation, and 1998 Refunding
Revenue Bonds of the Corporation. The 2007 COP provided funding for expansion of the police
facility. The 2006 Revenue Refunding bonds refunded 1991 Local Agency Revenues Bonds that
provided monies for the purchase of the Costa Mesa Community Facilities 1991 Special Tax
Bonds. The 2003 Refunding COP refunded 1993 Refunding Revenue Bonds that provided for
the refunding of the Costa Mesa City Hall and Public Safety Facilities, Inc. 1966 and 1988 Lease
Revenue Bond issues. The 1998 Refunding Revenue Bonds provided for the refunding of 1990
Lease Revenue Bonds.
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Financing
Authority
Debt Totals
Service 2013 2012
Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,385,000 1,385,000 1,505,000
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 4,282,101 4,282,101 5,570,697
Due from other governments - - -
Interest receivable - - -
Due from other funds - - -
Total assets $ 5,667,101 5,667,101 7,075,697
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities $ - - -
Advances from other funds - - -
Total liabilities - - -
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Debt service 5,667,101 5,667,101 7,075,697
Total fund balances 5,667,101 5,667,101 7,075,697
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,667,101 5,667,101 7,075,697
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Financing
Authority
Debt Totals
Service 2013 2012
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - 968,358
Investment income 125,280 125,280 134,452
Miscellaneous - - -
Total revenues 125,280 125,280 1,102,810
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 3,615,000 3,615,000 3,985,000
Interest and fiscal charges 1,446,242 1,446,242 2,479,784
Total expenditures 5,061,242 5,061,242 6,464,784
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (4,935,962)  (4,935,962)  (5,361,974)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,527,366 3,527,366 4,808,305
Transfers out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,527,366 3,527,366 4,808,305
Net change in fund balances, before
extraordinary item (1,408,596)  (1,408,596) (553,669)
Extraordinary item:
Gain on transfer to successor agency - - 10,166,962
Net change in fund balances (1,408,596)  (1,408,596) 9,613,293
Fund balances (deficit) at beginning of year 7,075,697 7,075,697 (2,537,596)
Fund balances at end of year $ 5,667,101 5,667,101 7,075,697
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MAJOR AND NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are established to account for financial resources segregated for
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds).

The following has been classified as a major fund in the accompanying government-wide
financial statements:

Park Development Fund
Established to account for development and maintenance of the City’s park system. Financing is
provided by fees charged to residential and commercial developers.

The following have been classified as nonmajor funds in the accompanying fund financial
statements:

Capital Improvements Fund
Established to account for construction of capital facilities financed by the City’s General Fund.

Measure “M” Construction Fund
Established to account for the expenditure of the April 1991 voter-approved one-half percent
sales tax for local transportation improvements

Parking Districts Fund
Established under the Vehicle Parking District Law of 1943 to provide vehicle facilities in the
downtown area. Financing was provided through specific property tax levies.

Golf Course Improvements Fund

Established to account for Costa Mesa Country Club capital expenditures. The City receives two
and one-half percent of monthly gross receipts of green and tournament fees to finance capital
improvements.

Drainage Fees Fund
Established to account for construction and maintenance of the City’s drainage system.
Financing is provided by fees charged to residential and commercial developers.

Traffic Impact Fees Fund

Established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds for off-site transportation
improvements Citywide. Financing is provided by fees charged to residential and commercial
developers.

Fire System Development Fees Fund

Established to account for receipt and disbursement of development impact fees established by
Ordinance 89-1 for future construction of fire protection facilities and equipment for north Costa
Mesa.

107




CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013

(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Capital Measure "M"  Parking Golf Course
Improvements Construction _ Districts  Improvements
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,380,672 8,198,524 28,586 588,915
Due from other governments 610,863 1,356,646 9 -
Accounts receivable - - - 10,568
Interest receivable 3,289 13,160 - 814
Total assets $ 2,994,824 9,568,330 28,595 600,297
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 73,115 530,070 - -
Accrued liabilities - 9,883 - -
Retentions payable 46,980 79,778 - B
Deposits payable - - - -
Due to other funds - - - -
Total liabilities 120,095 619,731 - -
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues 404,623 587,762 - -
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items - - - -
Restricted for:
Public services - 8,360,837 - -
Assigned for:
Protection of persons and property - - - -
Public services 2,470,106 - 28,595 600,297
Total fund balances 2,470,106 8,360,837 28,595 600,297
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 2,994,824 9,568,330 28,595 600,297
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Fire System

Drainage Traffic Development Totals
Fees Impact Fees Fees 2013 2012

1,618,987 3,722,462 742,051 17,280,197 14,513,353
. - - 1,967,518 2,168,419

- - - 10,568 30,570

2,237 5,144 1,025 25,669 50,262
1,621,224 3,727,606 743,076 19,283,952 16,762,604
8,785 16,794 - 628,764 373,799

< - - 9,883 10,950

- 2,643 - 129,401 151,665

8,785 19,437 - 768,048 536,414

- - - 992,385 1,381,964

- - - 8,360,837 7,749,060

- - 743,076 743,076 737,359
1,612,439 3,708,169 - 8,419,606 6,357,807
1,612,439 3,708,169 743,076 17,523,519 14,844,226
1,621,224 3,727,606 743,076 16,762,604

19,283,952
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Rental
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public services
Redevelopment

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance, before
extraordinary item

Extraordinary item:
Loss on transfer to successor agency

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Capital Measure "M"  Parking Golf Course
Improvements Construction _ Districts _Improvements
- - 20,159 -
1,076,060 4,064,899 - -
- - - 102,607
10,007 81,522 131 4,596
30,000 - - -
1,116,067 4,146,421 20,290 107,203
1,931,896 3,534,644 - 166,025
1,931,896 3,534,644 - 166,025
(815,829) 611,777 20,290 (58,822)
2,590,000 - - -
- (148)
2,590,000 . (148) :
1,774,171 611,777 20,142 (58,822)
1,774,171 611,777 20,142 (58,822)
695,935 7,749,060 8,453 659,119
2,470,106 8,360,837 28,595 600,297
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Fire System

Drainage Traffic Development Totals
Fees Impact Fees Fees 2013 2012

- - . 20,159 4,184

= - - 5,140,959 4,435,065

529,104 132,406 - 661,510 450,320
- - - 102,607 92,693

12,483 30,239 5,717 144,695 228,754

- - - 30,000 197,630

541,587 162,645 5,717 6,099,930 5,408,646
95,400 282,524 - 6,010,489 5,984,354

5 3 = - 678,818

95,400 282,524 - 6,010,489 6,663,172
446,187 (119,879) 5,717 89,441  (1,254,526)

- - - 2,590,000 -
(148) (251,769)
- - - 2,589,852 (251,769)
446,187 (119,879) 5,717 2,679,293  (1,506,295)
- . - - (1,541,416)
446,187 (119,879) 5,717 2,679,293  (3,047,711)
1,166,252 3,828,048 737,359 14,844,226 17,891,937
1,612,439 3,708,169 743,076 17,523,519 14,844,226
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Capital Improvements Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget Prior
Original Final Positive Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - -
Intergovernmental 4,186,950 5,106,950 1,076,060 (4,030,890) 1,707,078
Rental - - - - -
Investment income 3,000 3,000 10,007 7,007 10,609
Miscellaneous - B 30,000 30,000 161,180
Total revenues 4,189,950 5,109,950 1,116,067 (3,993,883) 1,878,867
Expenditures:
Current:

Public services 7,221,950 10,065,704 1,931,896 8,133,808 2,120,717
Total expenditures 7,221,950 10,065,704 1,931,896 8,133,808 2,120,717
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (3,032,000)  (4,955,754) (815,829) 4,139,925 (241,850)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,640,000 2,640,000 2,590,000 (50,000) -
Transfers out - - - - (250,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,640,000 2,640,000 2,590,000 (50,000) (250,000)
Net change in fund balance (392,000)  (2,315,754) 1,774,171 4,089,925 (491,850)
Fund balance at beginning of year 695,935 695,935 695,935 - 1,187,785
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ 303,935 (1,619,819) 2,470,106 4,089,925 695,935
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Measure "M" Construction Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget Prior
Original Final Positive Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes - ~ - 3 5
Intergovernmental 4,845,050 6,415,010 4,064,899 (2,350,111) 2,727,987
Rental - - g = u
Investment income 22,500 22,500 81,522 59,022 122,540
Miscellaneous - - - - 36,450
Total revenues 4,867,550 6,437,510 4,146,421 (2,291,089) 2,886,977
Expenditures:
Current:

Public services 6,730,411 15,140,957 3,534,644 11,606,313 3,654,911
Total expenditures 6,730,411 15,140,957 3,534,644 11,606,313 3,654,911
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,862,861)  (8,703,447) 611,777 9,315,224 (767,934)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (1,862,861)  (8,703,447) 611,777 9,315,224 (767,934)
Fund balance at beginning of year 7,749,060 7,749,060 7,749,060 - 8,516,994
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ 5,886,199 (954,387) 8,360,837 9,315,224 7,749,060
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Parking Districts Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget Prior
Original Final Positive Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 892 892 20,159 19,267 4,184
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Rental - - - - -
Investment income 50 50 131 81 71
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total revenues 942 942 20,290 19,348 4,255
Expenditures:
Current:

Public services - - - - -
Total expenditures - B - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 942 942 20,290 19,348 4,255

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - (148) (148) (68)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (148) (148) (68)
Net change in fund balance 942 942 20,142 19,200 4,187
Fund balance at beginning of year 8,453 8,453 8,453 - 4,266
Fund balance at end of year $ 9,395 9,395 28,595 19,200 8,453
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Drainage Fees Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Charges for services 200,000 200,000 529,104 329,104 352,222
Rental = 5 - - -
Investment income 7,500 7,500 12,483 4,983 15,732
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total revenues 207,500 207,500 541,587 334,087 367,954
Expenditures:
Current:

Public services 500,000 852,101 95,400 756,701 47,423
Total expenditures 500,000 852,101 95,400 756,701 47,423
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (292,500) (644,601) 446,187 1,090,788 320,531

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (292,500) (644,601) 446,187 1,090,788 320,531
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,166,252 1,166,252 1,166,252 - 845,721
Fund balance at end of year 873,752 521,651 1,612,439 1,090,788 1,166,252




CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Traffic Impact Fees Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Charges for services 150,000 150,000 132,406 (17,594) 98,098
Rental - - - - .
Investment income 30,000 30,000 30,239 239 55,896
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total revenues 180,000 180,000 162,645 (17,355) 153,994
Expenditures:
Current:

Public services 1,353,150 1,698,371 282,524 1,415,847 42,312
Total expenditures 1,353,150 1,698,371 282,524 1,415,847 42,312
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,173,150)  (1,518,371) (119,879) 1,398,492 111,682

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in = . - - .
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (1,173,150)  (1,518,371) (119,879) 1,398,492 111,682
Fund balance at beginning of year 3,828,048 3,828,048 3,828,048 - 3,716,366
Fund balance at end of year $ 2,654,898 2,309,677 3,708,169 1,398,492 3,828,048
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Fire System Development Fees Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Prior Year
Actual

Revenues:
Taxes $ = - = =
Intergovernmental 4 - - -
Charges for services - = & @
Rental = =
Investment income 7,500 7,500 5,717 (1,783)
Miscellaneous = = - -

Total revenues 7,500 7,500 5,717 (1,783)

Expenditures:
Current:
Public services = - - =

Total expenditures 2 - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 7,500 7,500 5,717 (1,783)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - z : =
Transfers out - & - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balance 7,500 7,500 5,717 (1,783)

Fund balance at beginning of year 737,359 737,359 737,359 -

10,834

726,525

Fund balance at end of ycar $ 744,859 744,859 743,076 (1,783)

737,359
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Park Development Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive Prior Year
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes = = - = =
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Charges for services - B 149,806 149,806 27,144
Rental - - - -
Investment income 15,000 15,000 11,230 (3,770) 21,498
Miscellaneous - - - - 750
Total revenues 15,000 15,000 161,036 146,036 49,392
Expenditures:
Current:
Public services 624,250 1,050,991 237,583 813,408 50,155
Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges - - 242,562 (242,562) 228,832
Total expenditures 624,250 1,050,991 480,145 570,846 278,987
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (609,250)  (1,035,991) (319,109) 716,882 (229,595)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) B - - - -
Net change in fund balance (609,250)  (1,035,991) (319,109) 716,882 (229,595)
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year  (2,572,832)  (2,572,832) (2,572,832) - (2,343,237)
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $(3,182,082)  (3,608,823)  (2,891,941) 716,882 (2,572,832)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by
one City department to others, or of other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Equipment Replacement Fund
Established to account for all motorized equipment used by City departments.

Self Insurance Fund — Worker’s Compensation/General Liability/Unemployment
Established to account for receipt and disbursement of funds used to pay worker’s compensation,
general liability, and unemployment claims filed against the City.
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Motorized equipment
Other equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Capital lease payable
Claims payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Capital lease payable
Claims payable

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position (deficit)

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Self-Insurance
Workers'
Compensation/
General
Equipment Liability/ Totals

Replacement Unemployment 2013 2012
$ 7,099,481 6,534,884 13,634,365 13,844,494
21,394 - 21,394 13,065
10,786 9,243 20,029 44,862
- 134,085 134,085 -
136,144 - 136,144 150,932
7,267,805 6,678,212 13,946,017 14,053,353
10,522,025 - 10,522,025 11,701,263
169,648 - 169,648 330,993
(7,016,573) . (7,016,573)  (7,888,517)
3,675,100 - 3,675,100 4,143,739
10,942,905 6,678,212 17,621,117 18,197,092
140,779 184,293 325,072 424,514
9,753 - 9,753 12,676
196,334 - 196,334 189,129
- 3,525,000 3,525,000 3,005,239
346,866 3,709,293 4,056,159 3,631,558
415,395 - 415,395 611,729
- 8,876,539 8,876,539 6,785,166
415,395 8,876,539 9,291,934 7,396,895
762,261 12,585,832 13,348,093 11,028,453
3,063,371 - 3,063,371 3,342,881
7,117,273 (5,907,620) 1,209,653 3,825,758
$ 10,180,644 (5,907,620) 4,273,024 7,168,639
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Allocated administrative costs
Depreciation
Fuel and repair parts
Claims and premiums
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Interest Expense
Other income
Gain/(loss) on sale of equipment
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total transfers
Change in net position
Net position (deficit) at beginning of year

Net position (deficit) at end of year

Self-Insurance
Workers'
Compensation/
General
Equipment Liability/ Totals

Replacement Unemployment 2013 2012
$ 2,399,561 3,936,196 6,335,757 6,315,371
2,399,561 3,936,196 6,335,757 6,315,371
614,418 241,941 856,359 948,541
640,616 - 640,616 664,795
1,126,831 - 1,126,831 1,139,155
- 6,543,299 6,543,299 3,577,090
2,381,865 6,785,240 9,167,105 6,329,581
17,696 (2,849,044)  (2,831,348) (14,210)
56,789 50,922 107,711 188,042
(30,513) - (30,513) (37,454)
20,073 - 20,073 -
(161,538) - (161,538) (33,810)
(115,189) 50,922 (64,267) 116,778
(97,493)  (2,798,122)  (2,895,615) 102,568
(97,493)  (2,798,122)  (2,895,615) 102,568
10,278,137 (3,109,498) 7,168,639 7,066,071
$ 10,180,644 (5,907,620) 4,273,024 7,168,639
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and user departments
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from other funds
Cash paid to other funds

Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Cash received from disposal of assets
Acquisition of capital assets
Cash paid for capital related financing

Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in claims payable

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Self-Insurance
Workers'
Compensation/
General
Equipment Liability/ Totals

Replacement Unemployment 2013 2012
$ 2,391,232 3,936,196 6,327,428 6,542,208
(1,121,347)  (4,448,590)  (5,569,937) (5,027,264)
(565,821) (1,259) (567,080) (653,216)
704,064 (513,653) 190,411 861,728
22,812 - 22,812 52,112
(336,254) - (336,254) (23,197)
(219,642) - (219,642) (219,640)
(533,084) - (533,084) (190,725)
68,828 63,716 132,544 185,729
68,828 63,716 132,544 185,729
239,808 (449,937) (210,129) 856,732
6,859,673 6,984,821 13,844,494 12,987,762
$ 7,099,481 6,534,884 13,634,365 13,844,494
$ 17,696  (2,849,044) (2,831,348) (14,210)
640,616 - 640,616 664,795
14,788 - 14,788 (34,777)
(8,329) - (8,329) 193,027
- (134,085) (134,085) -
40,957 (140,399) (99,442) 207,784
(1,664) (1,259) (2,923) 264
- 2,611,134 2,611,134 (155,155)
$ 704,064 (513,653) 190,411 861,728
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AGENCY FUNDS

The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a fiduciary capacity for
individuals, government entities, and others. Such funds are operated by carrying out
specifications of trust indentures, statutes, ordinances, or other governing regulations.

Deposits Fund
Established to account for various other funds held by the City in an agent or trustee capacity for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds.

Community Facilities District Fund
Established to account for special taxes received under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982. Bonds were issued to provide for improvements within the District.

Costa Mesa Community Foundation Fund
Established for the purpose of providing opportunities for donors to contribute assets for the
benefit of the Community.

Airborne Law Enforcement (A.B.L.E.) Fund

Established to account for the receipt of funds made available to finance, acquire, and maintain
Airborne Law Enforcement Services, a public law enforcement service program. The cities of
Costa Mesa and Newport Beach were member agencies of this joint powers agency. The agency
contracts with public entities to provide helicopter services. In December 2012, ABLE’s Board
of Governors dissolved remaining assets of the joint venture and remitted funds to the member
agencies.
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Assets

Cash and investments

Due from other governments
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable
Inventories

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other governments

Total liabilities

CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Data for Prior Year)

Community Costa Mesa Airbome
Facilities Community Law Totals

Deposits District Foundation Enforcement 2013 2012
$2,652,141 47,941 - 2,700,082 7,364,240
- - - - 6,617
1,917 189,525 - 191,442 38,789
- 20 - 20 16,058
- - - - 85,447
$2,654,058 237,486 - 2,891,544 7,511,151
$ 282,426 174,577 - 457,003 430,895
2,371,632 62,909 - 2,434,541 2,211,439
3 - - - 4,868,817
$2,654,058 237,486 - 2,891,544 7,511,151
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

DEPOSITS

Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

Assets

Cash and investments
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Held for bondholders

Total liabilities

COSTA MESA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Deposits payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30,2013
$ 2,383,712 35,618,967 35,350,538 2,652,141

13,480 83,014 94,577 1,917

$ 2,397,192 35,701,981 35,445,115 2,654,058
$ 288,740 4,446,544 4,452,858 282,426
2,108,452 38,223,704 37,960,524 2,371,632
$ 2,397,192 42,670,248 42.413,382 2,654,058
$ - 249,903 249,903 -
$ - 249,903 249,903 -
$ - 244915 244,915 -
- 249,903 249,903 -

$ - 494,818 494,818 -
$ 134,584 259,797 346,440 47,941
- 241,075 51,550 189,525

434 20 434 20

$ 135,018 500,892 398,424 237,486
$ 19,693 491,224 336,340 174,577
102,987 529,545 569,623 62,909
12,338 - 12,338 -

$ 135018 1,020,769 918,301 237.486
(Continued)
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CITY OF COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA

Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

AIRBORNE LAW ENFORCEMENT

Assets

Cash and investments

Due from other governments
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable
Inventories

Prepaid items

Total assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other governments

Total liabilities

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets

Cash and investments

Due from other governments
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable
Inventories

Prepaid items

Total assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable

Due to other governments
Deferrred revenue

Held for bondholders

Total liabilities

(Continued)

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013
$ 4,845,944 329,320 5,175,264 -

6,617 - 6,617 -
25,309 15,965 41,274 =
15,624 - 15,624 -
85,447 24,250 109,697 -

$ 4,978,941 369,535 5,348,476 -
$ 122,462 2,597,609 2,720,071 -

4,856,479 - 4,856,479 -
$ 4,978,941 2,597,609 7,576,550 -
$ 7,364,240 36,457,987 41,122,145 2,700,082

6,617 - 6,617 -
38,789 340,054 187,401 191,442
16,058 20 16,058 20
85,447 24,250 109,697 -

$ 7,511,151 36,822,311 41,441,918 2,891,544
$ 430,895 7,535,377 7,509,269 457,003
2,211,439 38,753,249 38,530,147 2,434,541
4,856,479 - 4,856,479 -
12,338 - 12,338 -

- 244,915 244 915 -

$ 7,511,151 46,533,541 51,153,148 2,891,544
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health.

FINANCIAL TRENDS TABLES 1 -4
These schedules contain financial trend information to help the

reader understand how the government’s financial performance

and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY TABLES 5 - 12
These schedules contain revenue information to help the reader
assess the government’s most significant local revenue source.

DEBT CAPACITY TABLES 13 - 15
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the

affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt

and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION TABLES 16 - 17
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help

the reader understand the environment within which the government’s

financial activities take place.

OPERATING INFORMATION TABLES 18 - 20
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help

the reader understand how the information in the government’s

financial report relates to the services the government provides

and the activities it performs.

127




8¢l

SIUSUISNE)S [BIOURUL] SPI M -JUSUIILIAOL) :99IN0S

991°CTIT 98T 8TSOV0¥6T €79 10L°18C 1L6°8T8°L6T 86£°1S0°EIE 10¥° 0¥ '8cE £8C°905°5TE 998°6L5 11¢ 785 £0LTOE 100°85T L6T uonisod 10U SINIALOE [BIUSWWISA0Z [E10],
079°86L°EY Ov8 YL Yy 0€6 ST TY 0£6°ST0°0Y S9T¥E00S LTL'9VSLY 606'8LL'TY YL1°€90°99 LIYL90°IL L6LTI8 09 pajoLysaluf)
- : - = : : 9eL'ErLS SLO'SHE9 = o uswdo242pay
8£6°584°9C 16L°395°8C T09°667°9C S01°¢80°81 1161581 T9L°18L 81 €Y 981°61 £9€°568°LT L99ELG'ET TETSS16C S9IAIRS Dl[qng
YT EIL'S 900°79¢01 09C'T6CT 0LE'SLY'9 TL6'606°S 60L°109°01 8L8°991°01 1£6°6Y9°C SLILEY L 869°066°1 swersold Aunwwo)
0v8°6TET S10'61S°T 09C°0E°1 1LE0¥0°T 8IL°LOY €0€’1EY Y95 LYL 96T 18%°1 €06 V1L 1 SE8°ETLT Anadold pue suosiad Jo uondelold
pajoLnsay
Y5 ¥88v0T 9L8°¥S6°L0T 1L5¥55°60T S61°v0TTET TESTLITET 006'8L0°1€T £61°788°¢TT LTOTPILOT TTro1E 0T 6€V°SLSTOT § §1085E [e)deD Ul JUSULSIAUL JON.
SONIAIINY [BIUSWIUISAOD)
£10T T10T 110T 010¢ 600T 300C L00T 900C S00T $00C

1H'14VL

SIBd§ [BISI

(Sununolde jo siseq [eN.IdI8)
SUVIAA TVOSIA NHIL LSVT
INANOJINOD A4 NOLLISOd L3N

VINJOAITVD VST VISOD 40 ALID



6¢Cl

SIULMISNE) S [BIOURUL] OPI A -TUSUIIISAOL) 30INO0g

(coe'ves’s) S06tPETI 9LT 96T (¥89°09C°91) (c78'86571) 950°651°C L1¥°9Z6 €L P16 1SEL 66°020°6 8eI611°8 uoyIsod JaN Ul 28uey)

090°C£1°T8 £¥TLEL'96 $8T 70588 6L0VH1'E8 S9¥'$87°98 87T [80°66 851°06£96 LL'PSTLS 8L6 111'€8 €65 TLL'SL JaurueA0g Arewnd [e3o0],
(651°888°11) = = - - - - - E = Koua8y 10553001 01 SOUBAPE UO (SSOT)
- 1L£°097°6 - - - - - - - - Aouady 1055999NG 0) SJOSSE JO I9JSURI) UO Ulen)

'SUIA) ATeulpIoenXy
£T9°TSH'l : - - - - - - > = SJUAWANAS
£v6° 181 ¥6£°8L6 TL6°098 8E9¥8L'T 080058 89°798 6768 T0£01T 88 0VL L6L°168 SNOJUBL[SISIIA
651°0¥9 60T°LLE'T 06L°66%'C ¥8€°910°Y 61€649°1 9€L°659°9 LOVEEY'L 110°780°¢ 39239 SE€8°9¢H'T SWOOUI JUSULSIAUL
Yr9vig'y LLTV6S°8 000°TIT°6 99¥°LIN6 LT6'S1T6 ¥98°551°6 $50°L89°8 758°801°8 S6£°659°8 688°80C°S PRJoLIS2IUN ‘[ejUSWWA0FIANUT 19YI0
X1 WAL 196338 Trr'998 £95°858 16%°098 8LT°TE6 809°L68 [zdxats vevTi6 ¥6L°0€8 XE] 95URO1 SSauIsTy
TL6'818Y 9T LYY SSTOVT'Y 6S1°SH6°E [FAR7AR4 LIS'9%0 008°116°¢ TS9VLYE LYEEE8T 0ve6TET saxe) asmjouel,]
S69°LSTL 01542759 896 vHE’S ¥86'89T°t 8ST°61L'Y v00°16L°S 955°656°S 0TES9Y'S 0SE Y9y 199°12C°Y xe) Aouedno0 Jualsuel]
S6LEYLOY 6V8°LLO'EY YT es6’0r 1¥€°L9T°SE pIv88Y°6¢ SH8L16'0Y 6656849 080°610°0% $86°785°CY 650°LTO°1¥ S3XE] 35Tl PUE SIS
SSLT61ET ovEr9sie €999 VT 095°688°€T ¥06°LTE°ST 9EESILYT ¥88°176°CT 9¢ETSL61 991°985°81 812°978°81 saxey Apadoig

saxe],

'SANIALOY [EIUSUWIUISAOLD)
uonisog 9N W
sa8uey)) JOY}() PUE SINUIANY [IIUID)

(T7r'996'68)  (BEELTHE H8) (600°855°58) (£9L°v0t°66) (067¥38°001) (TL1°TT696) (rL7c9¥C8) (£96'206°6L) (620 16c7L)  (SSH'ES9°LY) asuadxs Jou Juawwaao3 Arewud eroL,
988°978+C Y8 eI HT 66V LTS £C £00°000°€T L0L°99¢°0€ eS1 VLY 1E TETTIBTE S91°861°8C 618°589°CC 101°£63%C sonuaAal JuswIaA03 Arewind [ejo1
096°0V1°S S90°6SSY YETEEC9 L6ET1HY9 188°8¢6'8 LE8F6S 01 S67°905°9 169115 0€0°€ST S vOLI'61Y'S SUOKNQLIUOD pue sjuels [ejide)
LTE VP8 680°7¢€8°8 600°L1L'9 L58°669°S 0£0°9L2°01 SE9'816°8 187°6SF' 11 PLLGOL'TL 0TI [LO'9 [Z1°818°9 suonnquIuod pue sjueld sugerado

- . - - - - - - - - Juawdo|aApaY
119°99°C 1L6°198°C 7€0°929°C 6LLYLE'T £Er'6e8°l LL8°TL8T S1t°089°S IS YLE'E 081°I8I°¢C ST89IEY SIDIALLS Olqnd
LO1°958°S 6£8°39C°S SET06TS LTSLIY'S [$6°SL0°9 PTIPSS'S SSTETY'S 68L°TOY'S SISLYT'S L66°LOY'S surerSoid Aunwwio)
188°6€L°C 088°5£9°T 686°099°C €r1°99T°¢ TIY9ET'e 089°€SS°E 985°TPL'E $9£°661°€ YEL'TE6'T $SO°1€6°T Ayedoid pue suosied jo uonaslolg

1S991A19S 10} SareyD
'SANIANIY [EIUSUWILISACD
SINUIAIY wesdosg

80€ €6L 11 781°9%5°801 80576807601 99L POV TTL L660STIEL STE96€8TL EL6SLT ST 8T1°101°801 806°9L0°L6 955°9¥S°T6 sasuadxa Juaurureaod Arewud [e10],
800°9ZL'1 865°€89°C 655°EV0 € 861°EYTE seroTy'e v8S°159°¢ 995°61¥°E 898°205°C 86179811 S8T6SEE 199p ULI)-3U0[ UO sa19)u]

- vOLE16 [¥5°T98 £66°STT1 66¥°SLE £9L°891°1 $00°588 [£9°605°T S66°VES SELTEY juawdol2A3pay
L1T°805°0T SPSELSST ¥Z0'1S0°81 68Y°8€€°0T 669°890°TT 0Z8°LOL'8T 6v6°6LY VT 9LTILE6T 6€L8TLY1 SLT66991 S301AI3S JNqnd
9166159 0SL0IEY LIES8S°S €IY°LS6%9 STYES6°01 YLEVOL'L €6T°SY6'S SLYOLL'E 90€°LT6Y TS8°LEEY surexdoid Grunwwo)
SIL€8E°E9 0£6°88L°19 188°009°8¢ 95¥°666°S9 SI9°81LY9 I81°S$9°LS ¥6'667°TS Y6L ETI'8S 96£°€SL'IS T TLY S Aadoxd pue suosiad Jo uo1aR101d
TSH'$S9°TT $S9°LL6'61 981°Th6'TT LITOV9 VT ¥09°80L°6T £09°805°6 917°9¥T'8T Yr0'€T81T vLTOP9'ET XIS 7/ FA S JUSUILISA0F [2I13U2D)

'SONIAIDY [BIUSWILISAOCL)
sasuadxyq
£10¢ 10T 110C 010T 600C 800C L00T 900¢C 00T 00T

SABI X €SI ]

(Sununodae Jo siseq |EnIdde)
SYVIA TVOSIH NAL LSV
NOILISOd .LAN NI SHDONVHD

VINYOAI'TVD ‘VSAI VLSOO 40 ALID
CTIdVL



0¢l

SIUSWAIE)S [BIOURUL] PUN, 190IN0S

‘5011030180 plo o1 Fursn pajussald ore sreak [eosy snoLAdId [[e ‘1oAdMOY ‘Sa1I03978D Mau oy Judsard

0] PaeISal U0q AARY | [T ‘OF 2UN[ JO SE SJUNOUIR 30UR[eq pun,] ‘(PSUSISSEUn pue ‘poudisse ‘PONII0d ‘PaloLnsal * 9qepuadsuon) SaHI03a1ed MAU SALY (Iim Wwayy paoe[dal pue
‘So11050]20 50BUR[Q PUTJ POAIISIIUT PUE PAAIISAI STOIA21d PaJRUTIIT]e JUSMTE]S SIYY, “[ 107 ‘0€ 2Uny papus Jeak [eosyy oy SULINp g “oN Wewalels g§vo paruswaidwt A1) (1)

Y05 TLS'SE S60'796'SE 668°LY1 6T TLOES6¥T €02 669'6C 855°6T66€ 20661 1S 6TV IPLLT $80°9TE ST $SI°619°0€ asuadxa 10u Juswuioaod Arewnd (g0,
(L£C°T68°T) (€L6'TLET) (T8gLL1T) E = > - - - - pausSisseuny
789°791°6 991°C60°L SLL'OVI'L s = = - - - - poussissy
] * - - - - = = = - paRIwIuIo))
650°T0E6T T06° 1HY 1€ LS99I pE - - - 4 - - - paIoLISaY
= = 6v8°T1 = - - - - - - a1qepusdsuoN
. - - (PL9°9€1°01) (cL0'6L5°6) (£9Z°00%°01) (850°TO0°LT) (6TL'¢8L11) (rL9°9zec) (1eo‘ceL’cn) Spuny s901A125 1991
- = - 09€°08L°01 T16°859°S1 788°65L°81 £208TISI SELOEL'S 6£8°6V€°8 8IS ehy el spuny spoafoxd ended
= - - 9552561 TLYTHO'E] L19F06°L Ts1°5T9°0T TIeeT'sl 162°L£9°91 TLE TV LL SpUny onuaAal [etoads
:u1 papodal ‘paAlasalun)
= - 5 0E¥°LSE6 169°9L5°01 TTE199°€C S8L'8LE9YT [re19sel 609°595°C1 S6T961°C1 poAlesay
SPUNJ [BIUSWLIIAOCF IaY]10 [V
I¥F'9v9°St 926 608°LY 0ES°SLT ST $90°0CS I+ 611795881 LYY 9T 99 L90P8E €L 891°LE6°0L ¥SETE8 69 0£2 00919 punj [e13US38 {e10L,
7€0°TSTIL 098°61¥°L CELCI6S s - - - - B - paugisseun)
SI9TIEI01 $08°LYE 01 L9¥°006°6 - - < - - - - poussissy
000°5T1°91 000°5CI°91 000°6Z1°91 - - - - - - - penIuILo))
- - = = = = - = = - Pa1oSSY
P6LLELE TOTLIEEL gTEVeELCl a = : - - - - s[qepuadsuoN
= = = 68£°860°LT SSI9IL e 98L°L9%°0S LSL'LSOSS 8¥6°T61°9S 811°509°vS STTSLE 9T pantasaruf)
- = = 9L9°1THv1 ¥95°0v1°s1 199°89L°S1 01£°9TE 8! 0TTYPL Y1 9€T°LTT S S00°STTST $ paAlasay
punj [e1susn)
€10T C10T o 1102 010C 600C 8007 L00T 900Z §00¢T 00T

SI1ed X [BISI]

(8ununodae Jo siseq [ENIdE Paljipow)
SYVHA TVOSIA NAL LSV
SANAA TVINTNANAITAOD 40 SHINVIVE ANNA

VINMOAI'TVD ‘VSAIN VLSOO 40 ALID

cHTdVL



Iel

%0¥'S %€0'L %StL %EP'9 %ST'9 %EL'L %S1'9 %bSS %p1S %98°L
@rsLESTD ¥90°¢£€'8 T69°6V6 L (s81°7807CD) (PEV'LLY 6T) (9z0°LT1°61) TLESEST 069160 $S0°6£6°C #8¥° 0567
(651°888°11) 1LE5¥9°S S0S8¢C SLTLOS (€167€E) 997618 98 V6L °0€ €87 665 S v8Z 0FS 357'860°¢
- - - . - = 000°096°6T - - -
- - - = - . - (s0Z'6£1°7) - (6LT'SYI61)
- . - . - C £61°08 - = 1£5°€0p
= - - ] = = - LITISVL = 0T1°¥T81T
(651°888°11) ILESHY'S - : = s - = - 2
(09%°T1T°9) (891°660°S) ($6L°1TT'8) (110°€59°8) (180°851°L) (119°561°8) (169°119°9) (801°L29°'%) (T€9'111°9) (L78°89%°¢)
09¥°TIT9 891°660°S 00£°09+°8 987°091°6 891°¢T1°L LL8P10'6 ¥86°59¢°L 6LEVIT'S 9161599 £IL'186°C
119°05£°01 €69°L89°C L8TTILL (09t°685°C1) (125 Tv9°6T) (T6T916'61) FL1'656F) (€65°2L0S°1) TLL'86ET (TrL'8+0°9)
L9STIOTIL £68°LL3°801 ££6°96£ 101 9787607 611 SSHSHOopI 981°L16871 LT 0£0'TEL €1L7659°S11 311881101 9€L°506°€01
E S - - - - 9€1°¢6S Sre06 = TLTOELT
INE7AN 0S0'vELT 805°780°¢ 8TSYYT'E §SS°09F°E 861°€89°¢ £1Y'9L5°C 085°8t¥°C £85°L9%°T 9P1°8LLT
0S0°TL8°E 6£L°STSY v06°S6€ Y Tr8 90y L89°C6E'Y LTV98Y'S 006'¥TS°€ 000°8€T°¢ LEE'L8ST $TL199°T
- YOL116 1¥5°798 £66°STT'L 66Y°SLE €9L°891°1 $00°588 1L9°605°T £6L°6¥S £v8°'88Y
[SLT8L9T TIEe19°cl 1L'6v8° 11 8€C9IT LI 65T VS6°LT 6T EreEe L6S1$6'HT 9TLT69°S1 079°¢06'91 $69°6L8°81
16£°991°9 LEESTL9 [L6°65T°9 11L°96T°9 919°08S°11 7557296 STT185°01 855°0€€°L 696°0TE9 Ly'S1T9
160°89%°09 ¥9£°€66°6S 062°L0T9S 9L 78819 $91°169°89 L00°688°99 L60PPY 19 TT'ES98S 11€°926°1S LLL'S96°8Y
£8L°786'1T L8EVL60T TST6ELTT 866°9LT°ST S69°619°6C 066°€TLST POL'ELY'LT 110°9L9°ST seszenee 878°¢8I°1T
8L1€9E1C1 98569 11 $Z1°801°CI1 99£°029°901 $£6 T07 911 763°0L6 8T 1 €SO TLOLTI 0TI TelvIL 616985901 v66958°L6
L1016 96 9LE | SZT690°T 8€1°995°C 119Tree 6vLT811 01188 166’118 00091°LTF 1 Pr6 LT
£T9°TSH'1 = = = = = = - £ s
SISISST - ; : = - = = - =
69t°€€S 891°681°1 £81°48T°C 6LE°LESE LYS'LTIT 901°698°S TOLEVS9 00¥'8¥H°C 166°1€6°¢ 617'3L8°L
SS0°L86°T 001°v50°¢ 670°006°C vrL'8¢8°C SL6'681°E 1LT8TI°¢ LOL'606°C 910°T6L'T 987°858°C 959'918°C
7607 Y 968°L91D 1IL8LY' Y yr6'951y LYS6LIY 8ELCSEY SLY'68LL €08 TLLY L16°5TE'E 695°0L1°¢
996°561°61 146°8¢8°61 31 189°1C 188°LE1° 1T 8T1°65£°9C 9¢L°880°LT 869°6L9°CT 0LV 661°CC 819°685°61 LTT080°91
0T est Y 181°805°¢ 918 H01°T 990°898°C 096°596°C $5£°990°¢ 66T°S16C 658°LST°E $8€°€56°T 89¥°85€°E
LSO'L66T 19£°¢06°1 L6LLSS T 009°68C°1 920°891°1 656°9L8°1 YTIvLS8T 0L8°101°T 059°816°1 6£8'¢P1°T
68°0€6°C8 £66°97S9L STE1E0°9L P19°52T°89 Or1°0LS vL 086'70¥°Z8 8FH°081°08 T1L°818°SL 787°955°0L TLO'SET'LY
£10¢T 10T 110C 010C 600 00T L00T 900T $00T 00T

v ATdVL

SANNA TVINTANTITAOD A0 SHONVIVI ANAA NI SEONVHO
VINYOAI'TVD ‘VSAIN VLSO 40 ALID

siea} 8ISty

(Buzunodae Jo siseq [ENIIIE PIJIPOLU)
SUVAA TVOSIA NIL LSVT

SIUSWAJE)G [RIOUEUT] PUN,f :90IM0g

sarmrpuadxa
reudesuou jo a3ejuaoiad B Se 301AI3S 192

S3oueRq PUNy Ul 95URYD JON

(sosn) s201n0S FulOURULJ JOYIO [BI0],
spaadoid puog

1U95e MOIOSD pUu0q 0] TUSWARJ
anSssI 1qap UO Wniwalg

199p uLL}-3U0] JO 20URNSS|

(sso]) uren Areurp1oenxyg

N0 S13JsUeL],

Ul SIQJSUBL],

:(sasn) s321n0s ZurdUBUY JIYQ
saInjIpuadxe (Iopun) I9A0 SAMUIADI JO SSIOXT

saImupuadxs [e10],
$93reys 1Y
153191U]
[edioung
1901A95S 192
JUEINGIEIT )
S9OIALSS J[qUd
surergoid funwwo))
Kuedold pue suos1ad Jo Uoo3301d
JUSUILLISA0F [eISURD)

saInyipuadxy

SONU3AI [BI0],
SNOJUR[[IISTIN
SIUQUIANIRS

Aunba uo wmay
QWOJUI JUIULISIAU]
By

SIIIAISS 10J $a3TRYD)
[EIUSUILIDA0ZISIU]
S119J10] pUe Saul]
sjunad pue $asuddly
SaxXe ],

SINUIAIY



cel

uorneuIoyu] Arejuswa[ddng panmbay :oomog

058°0£6°C8 889°¢16 €E€9°L16 TL6'818 Y S69°LSTL SSLT6IET LOT0E8'SH €10¢
£66°9TS9L (42932 L96°888 9TE LYY 0154259 over9s1T LOS'YETTH z10T
€TS1€0°9L 01S°6LL ¥ 998 ssTove'y 896 7Y€ $£9°9797C PILELI‘OY 1102
119°622°89 €15°0SL L95°858 6S1°516°¢ ¥86°89C° 095°688°€T 8T89IS Ve 0102
OvT1°0LS YL 6S1°628 16¥°098 TLIVLIY 8SI°61LY $06°LTE°ST 957°659°8¢ 600C
0860178 L1YLT6 8LTTE6 L1S°9%0°p Y00 16L°S 9¢ESIL YT 8TV 066°SH 800T
8¥°081°08 08¢°8h8 809°L68 008°116°¢ 955°656°S $88°176°CT 61Z°1¥9°SH L00T
T1L°818°SL 158°C€6 YTeTie TS9°vL9E 0TES9¥°S YECLIL'6T 0€T9II'SH 9002
787°955°0L 796°898 FEVTI6 LYE€E8°T 0SE 19 L91°985°81 TOVILTY $00T
TLOSETL9 $  LTbT8L $  v6L0S8 $  OvE6TET §  199°1ZTv § 81T9Z88T $  TEIWWTON  § 00T
[e0L L1 =Nkl asIyoueIg Kouednoo) Kaadoag saes SIea X [eosi]
uonisodoxg ssaursng JuaIsuRI ],

(Sununodde Jo siseq [EnIdde paljipown)
SUVHA TVOSIA NAL LSV']
SANNA TVINTANNITAOD “‘AIAN0S A9 SINNIATI XV.L

VINJOAI'TVD ‘VSIIN VLSO 40 ALID
SHAT4dVL



eel

sarweduo)) TpH 29U pue uonezijenby jo preog BIUIOJI[E) JO J1BIS :90IN0S

%00°1 %001 %00°1 %00°'1 2%00°1 %001 %00°1 %00°1 %001 2%00°1 97e1 XB] S3[ES 10211 A1)
SY9TIST § COIT8IF §  90S'868°C §  LSL€T9E §  TULVILI'Y §  TSLLI9Y §  wPI0T9YV § IEF1ESy § £€20°€9CY §  vYOLY8E §

S00°6€8 6TE8LL 7S8°86L 1€L°L69 980°7T8 €EL'RT6 £09°506 €0S°LI6 6T6'TLY 668978 SI9[IN0 JAYI0 Y
881196 6L6'7T6 ¥97°¢S8 €91°L6L $60°816 9rS0€0°T 960°TS0°1 9¢1°996 T ves 638°19L S2101S [Fe1a1 13410
L90°69T T68°07T L6%°961 6v1°LST 60£°€0T 79€°€81 €85°¢LI 0S9°161 $S1°9€1 SS6°ST1 SUONIB)S IDIAIIG
699°€19 SSLLLS 06£°9€S T1ssy LI£09S $60°659 99°vTL TT6'LIL PLI09L 05$°8L9 soyddns pue s1afeap oy
#09°051 SLS'TH1 eyl T09°ev1 1207261 €TS°TTT LTLLET 801°€€T 6%0°80T 769°681 s[eLaeWw JuIp[Iing
L99°L8E €IS 1LE $89°L€€ L80°STE 690°85€ Y09°6LE 1€£°09¢ ¥8£°0€€ 886°80¢ $09°€LT SJUAUIYST[qRISS ujuLIp pue Juneq
LLEY6 12L°¢6 SLST6 15796 615201 T9L°101 £¥T°001 TEE°56 St6°68 €TT'E6 $210)s poo]
7E8°16S £67°89S 0T6°0%S 9E6'¥ES 160°C8S 8.8°6€9 9L£°T09 8LV P19 9€1°¢8¢ 6ST°9€S ISIPUBYIIIW [BISUSD)
96609 §  9E0P8Y § 086'9¢y §  9ILE8E 0§ S96'TEF §  6vTT8Y 0§ 1TSE9F § SISy § 90T6Iy §  €I0TILE  § 2108 [oreddy

T10T 1102 010C 600¢ 800C L00T 9002 $00T 002 £00¢

SI1BI X |BdSI

(s1e(jop Jo spuesnoy) ur)
SUVIA YVANATVI NAL LSVT
AJOOUALVD A4 SHTVS H'1dVXV.L

VINJOAI'TVOD ‘VSIIN VLSOD 40 ALID
9ATAVL



vel

soruedwo)) TpH oY1 pue uonezifenby jo preog eruiojie)) Jo 9jel§ :90IM0S

%I1'C 6 T0E18 %60°C 6 LLEV6 S310}s pooq
%Yy L TOVOLI %Pt 3 #09°0S1 s[eloyew JuIpyIng
%VvTt 8 Y8LYTI %96°S L L90°69C suone)s IJIALRY
%elL 9 SLEVLT %658 9 L99°L8E SJULUIYST[qe)Sd SUDJULIp pue 3uned
%L El v LS8°EES %IT¢l S T€8°16S SSTpUBYDIIW [eISUSL)
%¢£C 01 S 919°€6¢ %Ivel v 9€6109 sa10)s [oreddy
%eLL1 3 £€€T89 %09°¢1 3 699°€19 sorfddns pue s1s[eap oy
%¥S1C I TIT'68 %6581 C S00°6£8 S1o[no PYIo [[V
%¢cL 61 (4 €62°6SL %I 1T I 881196 SaI03s [Tejal Iq10

RIS yuey saes sares yuey soes X103218)

Jlqexe] Jlqexe] J[qexe], J[qexe],
A1) 110, Jo AD 1eso 3o
a8ruadIog 23e1u2019g
£00¢ ¢10¢

LATAVL

OOV SUVHA ANIN ANV AVIA INTHAND
AdODHALVD Ad SHALLINTA XV.L ST'TVS TVAIONIRId

VIN”IIOAI'TVD ‘VSAI VISOD 40 ALID



Gel

uonezifenby Jo preog eruofe)) Jo 9JelS :0IN0Y

008 059 050 001 €10¢
SL'L $T9 050 00l ¢10¢
SL'8 STL 050 001 110¢
SL'8 STL 050 001 010¢
SL'8 SCL 050 001 600¢
SL'L ST9 050 001 800¢C
SL'L §C9 050 00l L00C
SL'L $T9 050 001 900¢
SL'L SC9 050 001 S00¢
0S'L 009 050 00t Y00¢C

ey ey Ay a1y SIBQ X TedST]

Xe], So[es RIWIOJI[R)) Auno) 10911
[e10], Jo a1 J3ue1) A1)
SUVHA TVOSIA NHAL LSV’

SHLVA XVL ST'TVS ONIddVTITAO ANV LOTAIA

VINIOAI'TVD ‘VSAIN VLSO 40 AL
8§ A'1dV.L



9¢l

S[[OY XeL PauIquo)) £107/Z10¢ 10Ssassy Auno)) aguer() :20mog
“3[qe[reA®. 10U ST 18aK AAS] Aq ere(] “Teak Uono9[[0d Aq S[QR[IBAE BJEP ST} Sa¥EW A[Uo a3ue1() Jo Ajuno)) YT, @

Kouanburap 9y} paooxa s1eak Juanbasqns 10§ PAJIS[[00 SIUNOWE Y1 JT %(0] PI2Oxs Aeur ALAY] JO 33e1ua0Idd YL ()

%8€°66 096°186°0C 182°C8¢ %LSL6 6L9°665°0C 780°CII°1T £10T
%66°86 TT1°29€°0C 07T 80Y %I10°L6 168°856°61 60€VLS0T 7102
%666 +89°€59°0C £00°v6S %S0°L6 189°650°0C 160°0L9°0T 110C
2%05°S8 TLO'PE0 8T 206°116 %31°18 LT TTILT $89°760°1¢C 0102
2%€0°001 ¥€5°€8T°1T 1€5°026 %IL°S6 ¥00°€9€°0T 01L°9LT 1T 600T
%67 86 $LS°0€S°0T 8LV TES %¥LS6 L60°866°61 vL¥°888°0C 800C
%CI'L6 080°866°81 81€£°CTI€ 2%€5°S6 79L°689°81 669°095°61 L00T
2%0€°86 9¢6°ST] LT TL8'6ET %86'96 £90°986°L1 119°7€1°81 900T
%96°86 101°€0S91 066°01¢ %0L°L6 111°262°91 818°5L9°91 $00T
%8766 LIFYTTST $ $08°TST $  %EYL6 CI9TL6 YT § SI6'VEEST § $00¢C

(1 AA97 Jo Junoury’ (@ s1R3 X AAT JO junowy’ Jed X [eosig ‘0¢ aunf

98eua010g juanbasqng 33.1ua219J o 10§ papuy

318(] 01 SUONII[O)) [RI10], 10J PAIdI[[0D AAYT 91 JO 1B X TeOST] pa1aaf saxe ] Ieo X [eosi]
S} UM pajovf[o))
SUVHA TVIOSIA NAL LSV

SNOILDATIOD ANV SHIATT XVL ALYAdOdd

VINJOAI'TVD ‘VSTIN VLSOD 40 AL
6 4'19V.L



LET

'S[10Y XeL, pauiquio)) £10Z/Z10T -#00Z/S00T 10835y Kuno) a3ue1() “2uo)) 79 ua10) JPH :9In0g

"anfeA
Passasse J[qexel [e103 2y S[enbo onjea o[qexe) [eNioe PIIBUINSD oY) “DI0JAISY [, "3A0QE PILIOSIP SUOLBHUI] Y} 03 103[qns St
pue Kuadoid o[qexe) JO SNeA J9IEW [Bryde A1) 0} 109dsal Yiim d[qejieAr A[JUALIND BIRp A[UO Sy} $JuasaIdar “9A0qe umoys
BIEp UONEN[RA Passasse 4], pos Auadoid 3y Jo anfeA o[wIouod 10 (anfea jasrew) 011d aseyoind oy 18 10 UOLONISUCD
MOU JO 1NSaI B se passasseal A[uo st Apadoid ‘suondeoxs ma] ynp (%7 JO WNWIXeW B 03 PIJIWI]) 10108] UOHE[JUl Ue Aq
pasealout oq Aew A1adoid Jo anea passasse oy “Ieak yoeg -paxe) Suraq Lredold oy Jo ofnea passasse oy uodn paseq

AXL JO 91e] WINWIXeW [€10} B 0} SAXE] PIJIWI] JoIym ¢ EOﬁ:mOQO.Hm ﬁOmWNQ BIWIOJI[RD JO A1B1S Y] JO SI1310A 3Y) 861 UL )

%00°001 £0S €S0 LLE VI %88TL1°0 €0S°€S0LLE YT = 6T£°0ST0L0°T 10T°518°CTI’l 088°189°6L7°E £60°90€V0L'8 €10z
%007001 TILLIGLIT VI %9CTLL0 TILLI6LIT YT - 6£8°965°590°1 T61°966°001°1 POL‘ECTP6E’E LLTI0L°LSSS [Afi4
%00'001 T88°TOF 9L I %YSILIO 788°T9¥ 911 Y1 - 959°€85°€91°1 897 798°8E1°1 7E5Y9€°997°€ 9ZT059°LYE"S 1102
%00°001 6V0°SLITEY T %I1¥TL10 6V0°SLITEY YL - 88L°510°C89°1 LSESIT961°1 18+°56T°€8€’E CTY'80T1LI'S 010T
2007001 6£8°LOI°99€ V1 %THELTO 6£8°L01°99€P1 = £1L°888°816°C 36€°TE86CI’T L60°080°€SST ££9°90¢791°8 600T
%00°001 LIS EETPT8El %9LTLIO LIS CETYT8 Cl = TIL'$00V0Y'T 611°L6T610°1 +88°9£7°85¢°T T08°069°C10°8 800C
%00°001 1SO'E0LYELTL %S91L1°0 1S0°€0L pEL T . YrLYE6 61T SE1°6T6°600°1 € ¥50°912°C 9ELPBLSE'L L00T
%00'001 LLY'SLL'YYO'LL %ILYLLO LLY'SLL'PP911 : 01£°86£°612°C SSLTLISS6 TT6TEE98L'L 06¥'TL8°L89°9 900T
200001 SOE LS 689°01 %SSSLLO SOE'LST 68901 - £59°TSHYS1T LE6°0LOSLY 60L°LET8YI°] 900°96£°110°9 $00T
%00°001 9TL'E8I'LSO0IS  %E09L1°0 9TLERI°LSO0IS - $  LLI‘$8STEOT $§  LSS0S8VI6 $  SISYPLBOLTS  tLI000'I0V'S S 00T
AM[eA d[gexe] [enOY JO w NEA ey Xe] EIEIN Apadoid Ayadolg Auoadold Auadorg AM2dOIg SIed X [BoSI]
SBrucoogeSeoneA  d[gexe] [emOy  102I(] [RI0L passassy jdwox3-xe]  SNOUR[[IISIA [ensnpug [eoLIWWO)) [e13UIPISIY
passassy g[qexe] parewnsg J|qexe], [e10] 18897

(3unzunodde o siseq [enIddE palyipour)
SYVIA TVOSIA NAL LSV1
ALIAdOdd HTAVXVL A0 ANTVA TVALIDV CLLVINLLSH ANV HN'TVA AASSHASSY

VINIOAI'TVD VST VISOD 40 ALID
01 4'19VL



8¢l

‘S[[OY Xe] PAUIqUIO)) £107/Z10T - $00T/E00T 105S9SSY Auno) 33weI() dU0)) 7 UaI0) "TPH 9010

“1qop 1usurdooaapay Surpuelsino 3y 10y [qIsuodsar st
£ouady Juowido[aAdPaY BSIIA BISO)) IOULIO] dU) 0} Louady 108s300nG Y} ‘10T ‘1 Areniqa] jo sy

"ON[RA PISSISSE I[GeXR} AQ ANUIAJI

A1) 12101 SuUIpIAIp £q PRALIOp 95e1oAR PAYSIOM B ST BSOJA BISOD) JO A1) 9U) J0F 2981 102IIp [10),, 3],
,uonoas [eonsness oy Surredsrd yuswnioaod oy £q parjdde sajel [enplAIpul [[e Jo d3eIdoAe pajysom YT,
“SMO[O] SE SI 2181 JO2IIP .10}, JO UOTIIULJIP S} UONRIOOSSY SIJIJ() IIUBUL] JUSUIUIIAOL) S} 18]

(4]

m

§€500°0 00£81°0 6199¢°0 88CLT0 000001 0L£00°0 = 6L8V1°0 £10¢C
§€S00°0 00£8¥°0 6¥99¢°0 9CCLI 0 000001 0L£00°0 = 6L8V1°0 210¢
$E€S00°0 00¢£81°0 6199¢°0 PSILTO 000001 0L£00°0 - 6L8V1°0 110¢
§6500°0 00£81°0 6199¢°0 IvCL10 000001 0€v00°0 - 6L8V1°0 010
§1900°0 085L9°0 6199¢°0 TreELTO 000001 0£¥00°0 - 6L8V1°0 600C
S1900°0 (42452 L599¢€°0 9LTLT'0 000001 051000 - 6L8V1°0 800¢
$€900°0 98LIC0 LS99¢°0 SOILTO 000001 0Lt00°0 - 6L811°0 L00T
$8900°0 CELISO LS99¢°0 ILVLT 0 000001 0080070 2 6L8V1°0 900¢
SYL000 6L67S°0 LS99€°0 SSSLT O 000001 098000 = 6L8V1°0 §00¢
SLLOOO S¥T0s 0 LS99¢°0 €09LT°0 000001 068000 9L200°0 6L871°0 ¥00¢
199 199 19°d o el weIsoI1] (p PMIS I 0ABS 19T ey 189 X T89S
S1LISI(] 1OSI(] J8ue1) 1211 wouwrdofoaspay]  juowdo[oaspay — uonesiqQ arseq
reradg [ooyss Jo Ajuno) eoL [e19UdD)
sarey] suiddefoaQ sa1eY 10211 A1)
SUYVHA TVOSH NAL LSV']

1T HT14dV.L

SHLVI XVL ALYAdOdUd ONIddVTITAO ANV LOHAIA
VINIOAI'TVD ‘VSAI VILSOD 40 ALID



6¢l

'ST[0Y XB L, PIUIGUIOD) $00T/C00Z % €10T/Z10T 108SISSY Auno)) d3ue1() ouo)) 79 UoI0) TpH :901Mog

%LLtl 98498¢C § %SST1 081°0.8C  $

%L 0 01 769°8C1

%080 6 1€V°6€1

%¢€0°1 L 991°8LI

%0¢°1 9 €19°6TT

%6¥'1 14 8.8°8ST

%0¢°1 ¢ 951°09¢

%81°C C 6TV LLE
%¢cCL 0 01 11081
%180 6 169°10T

%680 8 OE ST %¢C80 8 62T €0T
%L80 L 160°L1C
%00°1 9 1S€6¥T

%LVl ¢ 126°vST %9C'1 S €0CEIE
2%0¢°1 14 8L9°TTE
%¢EST € L1S°08¢€
%19°1 [4 SHE66€

%9¢°C I 908°80¥ $ %91 I Y€6°T0¥ $

onuoANY yuey aNULAY ONUIANY Nuey ANUIANY
Xe[ XeL, XeL, Xel,
Aadoig Aaadoig Kyadoig Aadoig
A1) Telof Jo A1) el0] 30
98ruoo1ag 98e1ua019g
¥00Z-€00¢C £10¢-C10¢

OOV SAVIA ANIN ANV IdVHA INTIHNO
SUYAAVd XVL ALYAdOYUd TVJIONI|Id

VINIOAI'TVD ‘VSAN VLSO 40 ALID
I A T4dV.L

[el0]
SOIRIOOSSY A[Iure,] S[[IAIATY
Suog 29 WonsId33§ D)
SOWIL ], SI[ASUY SO]
DTT ) Umo] om] dSq
WIISAS JUSUWIAINIYY SISYDILI],
Suire,{ eyoLyes
arenbg o[3ueLi],
d’] SoYE] uUspsen)
d1 £[eay] uoruruo( paju()
qniD oIy 9y} JO 2JURYIXY 0URINSULIU]
Keudwo)) sutax] O] yoelrey
OTT Um0 OSL OMM
DT HodmaN 1061
IT1 Auedwo)) surAlf
79990) uone)10dio)) [T 119y BOLIOWY Joory
T SPref1mo)) esajA ©IS0)) Isnij,
®Ze[J 1S80)) YINoS

Tokedxe],



ovi

jusunaeda(] 9oueUL] BSI BISOD) JO A1) :90IN0g

“1qop 1uowdo[aAapay Surpuelsino oy} 10§ S[qisuodsal st AousSy JudWAO[IAIPIY LS BISOD) JULIOY 3y} 0} Kouagy 10559000 Y} ‘T10T ‘1 ATeNIGa] JO SV ()

%0966 %6¥ 66 %0t 66 %EE 66 %¥T 66 %I1°66 %5686 %¥L 86 %586 %EE'86 1] 1G3p 24 JO
a3ejuao1ad B se uiSrew 1qap [e3y]
8E6PIT €8S SIETYTTLS 701°808°0LS LOLY96°18S L66°€T8SLS L89°8TEISS 69%°105°01¢ 6T 1L0°09Y 685°8L0° VLY T9TLLY'86E wgrew 1qap B3]
8€9°08L°58S ST0°TSISLS T08°EVTHLS LOY016°58S L69°¥9T €8S T THT9SS L8V V68°S1S 81 ST6'S9Y €TI°I6£°0EY S8ETHT SOF (an[BA PISSISSY JO %GL'E)
| 3g9p (€3]
00L°69¢°C 00L°016C 00L'SEVE 00L°SH6°E 00L°0¥' Y SS6°ETOY 810°€6¢°S 610°158°S PESTIE £TI°59L°9 nuny 3q3p
0} o[qeotjdde 1gop 19U [e10],
00€ V0L 00£%0L 00£°v0L 00 V0L 00£¥0L SP0°90L 86°T1L 186°01L 99%°LOL LL8VOL 199p [eIoUsE
Arda1 0] apise 198 SJUNOUNY (SSOT
L § s $¢ <88 § 066 $ €59 $  8IL $ L0TI §  60¥L §  L¥9l §$  1£91 $ ended 10
%¥120°0 2%9570°0 %€£670°0 %62£0°0 %95£0°0 %T6£0°0 %CPY0°0 %9150°0 %€£090°0 %6690°0 9N[BA PISSISSE J[GEXE) JO ITEIUNI]
000°0L0°€ 000°S19°¢ 000041 Y 000059t 000°SYI°‘S 000°0£9°€ 000°601°9 000°595°9 000°020°L 000°0LY°L [e10],
000°0L0°¢ 000°619°¢ 00001 v 000059 000°SH1°S 000°0£9°S 000°501°9 000°595°9 000°020°L 000°0LYL § (1) spuoq juswdojAapay

Spuoq uoles1jo [eIauar)
SuIpue)SINo 1qop Papuoq [EIUID)

£10¢ 10T 110T 010C 600¢ 800¢ L00¢ 900C $00¢ 00T
SI1ea § [BISI]

SAVIX TVISIH NAL LSV'T
NIDAVIA LIAd TVOAT ANV ONIANVISLNO L4Id AAANOI TVIINTD 40 OLLVY

VINIOAI'TVD ‘VSAIN VISOD A0 ALID
€I A'1dVL



vl

jusurreda(] 9ouRUL] BSIIA BISOD) JO A1) :90IN0§

“1qop 1uswdo]aA3pay SuIpuelsINo Y} 10y 3[qIsuodsal st Aousdy Juswdo[aAPY BSIIN BISOD) IULIO) 3Y) 0} Koua8y 10s5300Ng Y} ‘T[T ‘| AIenIqa JO SV (|

PITLOY %96'0 6TL°969°SE 6TLTTY 000°SL8°€T 000°0¥1°8 L %¥120°0 000°0L0°¢ B €10T
98'¥TC’l %IT'1 LO6°TOE 0V LO6°LSO°T 000°0%1°5T 000°06%°01 £h'8 %9520°0 000°619°¢ = 710T
6% 1 %LT1 ¥€8°010°SH $£8°08L°T 000°55£°9¢ 000°5€L°TT $8'8 %€620°0 00001y ¥ 1102
$8'9€9°1 %0¥' T LEL'9OY 6F LELTPET 000°5TS°LT 000°068°¥1 766 %6T£0°0 000059t 4 0102
09°SYLT %081 SES 88V TS SE5°868°1 000°59¥°8C 000°086°91 L0l %95£0°0 000°SH1°S 5 600T
18°501°¢ %ELT 7TT°T88°9S TTLEO'E 000°SIT°6T 000°000°61 STL 2%76£0°0 000°0£9°S = 800C
81'78C°C %00'CT 6¥9°89£°79 619°89€°S 000°096°6¢ 000°5£6°0T LOTI %CyF0°0 000°501°9 = L00T
8L°91¢1 %91°1 9€5°686°5¢ 9€6°5TL9 = 000°$69°CT 60v1 %9150°0 000°95°9 - 900C
0 LST'T %111 991°€5EpE 991°€66°C - 000°0VE YT Ly91 %€090°0 000°070°L - $00T
hS6s’T § %Il cosovT’Le § £05°569°¢ $ = 000°5L0°9C  § I€9T  $  %66900 000°0L¥'L  $ - 002
ende) woou] JUSUIULIOAOD) Suroueur uondeidied spuog eyde) an[eA passassy o Pued spuog ‘0¢ aung
134 [euosIag Jo Arewnid aseyoInd asea| Jo ANUIAY 1d dlqexe] wowdojaaspay  uone3IqO papuyg
a3ruad1ag el S9JBOILIR) [ewl jo [eIsuan) I3 X [eost]
a8ejuanind
193(J SAUIANDY [BIUSWUWIAAOL) ISYIO 192 papuog [BIdudn)
SAVIA 'TVISIA NAL LSVT

HdAL A9 LIId ONIANVISLAO A0 SOLLVY

VINHOAI'TVD VST VLSO 40 ALID
PI H'I9V.L



08L°€06°12T
000°S€T°0€ %001 000°SEY0€
[¥6°759°¢ %9618 000°0LS V¥
vSLY91°0T
0€0°0€S %19¢°¢ 000°0LLS1
v1Ev6T01 %I19¢°¢ vvT L8T°90€
1STY0v°9 %19€°€ 000°9vS 061
8T 1€S°T %60T°¢ 088°G88°3L
TILYOY %ee0V 000°G€0°01
¥80°1S9°LI1
T€8°0€1°1 %S890 000°680°591
956°966°¢ %¢e9¢°1 r69rT E6T
LY9°€TS 6 %60T ¢ TLT6LL96T
S05°880°98 %ELTEL 86986589
rr11EES9 %I120°LT 0ST'6LL YT
000°08S°T %001 000°08S°1
192 orqeorddy 3urpuelsing
Surdde(1oaQ ageuaoind 192

pue 19211(] pajelInSy

Jo areys

pajewinisy

SIHTAVL

i

‘ouy ‘sonsnels [ediomunyA BILIOjE) :99IN0S

Jqap 1021Ip S,A11D) Y} INOGE UOHBULIOJUI QIOUT JOJ JUSUISIELS SOUBUL] UL / 9JON 39S ()

1qop Surddepraro pue 129.11p [EI0],

M suone3I[qQ pun, [eIsUaL) eSS ©IS0)) JO A1)
19ap 10211p 11D

(£>ouady 108s930n§) 1qa(q JwdwdW] xe], SuiddeprerQ

soxe) Auadoad yum predai 1qap puny [e1oudd Surdderiaao [ejolgng
uonedionied Jo $e1eo1LI9)) uoneonpy Jo preog Auno)) a3uei)
suonesjqQ uolsuad Aunoy) aguei)
suonesiqO pun4 [eleusn Auno)) A3uei)
uonedronred Jo s91ed111Id)) IOLISI(] [00YDS PIYIU) BUY BlUBS
uoneiodio)) sanI[oe 19jEA AUno)) aduel Jo 10LISK 19eA [ediorumiy
saxe) Apradoxd yyim predai 3qap punj [esdudgd surddepAQ

soxe) Auradoid yim predar 1qap Juswssassy pue xe] Suidderoao [ejoigng
191S1(] 191E A UBljodonay
101181 239[[0)) Arunuro)) o3eiues oyouey
101K [00YOS PAIJIl[) BUY BIUBS
191SI( 239[[0)D ANUnWIwo)) 1580
10LSI(T [00YDS PALJIUN BSIIA ModmaN
[-16 "ON JOLISI(T SAWI[I98,] AJUNWIio)) eSO B1S0D) JO A1)
soxe) A)rodoad gum predas 3qap judwssassy pue xgJ, suiddeproaQ

JTU) [ETUSWIISA0D)

€107 ‘0€ ANAC A0 SV

L9Ad STLLIALLDV TVINIANITAOD ONIddVTIIAO ANV LOTIIA
VINIOAI'TVD ‘VSEIW VLSOD 40 ALID



vl

“Teak YoBa [O€ Suny Jo se jusuyreda(] Juswdojas( Juowkofdwy LIUIofe) JO 31elS - (1)
JOLSI( [00YdS PaYIu eSSN-MOdMIN - (€)
*aoueuL Jo jusuneda( o1e1§ BrLIof[eD - (7)

saruedwo)) TpY oYL pue / jusurpedo(q soueuL] eSS €150D JO A1) - (1) :99mog

%019 ¥76°1¢ €€ 9ze'ee LITTIL'E 8SETT1 £10¢
%06'L 61912 133 ¥06°CE SYEVY9‘c LSLOTT 10¢
%076 vr1c 123 ¥81°0€ 106°9€5°E 8LI'LTI 1102
%058 £SE°1T €€ 690°0€ 85T'86Y°C Ive911 010T
%0¢°6 8LI‘IT [43 SIEBI £90°L80°C Y ¥18! 600C
%0¢°¢ 0T6°0C [43 6CE°LT K44 203 SS6'Ell 800¢C
%06°¢ LL8°0T [43 6TE°LT [44AN118 K3 S08°¢I1 L00T
%0L°¢ €STIT [43 6TELT S8L°160°C FETETL 900¢C
%06'C SL81IT [43 weee 979°8€9°C THo'ell §00¢
%09°¢ 908‘1C [43 006°81 806°SE1°T [10°€11 ¥00C
(Ve (o uSIoIug 3V () 2Uodu] (sxefiop jo (o tonemdog T K
yuswkojdwaup [00Y0S UBIPIN [eUOSIS Spuesnoy}) Iepus[e)
£uno)) a8uei() eyde) 194 Quoou|
[eUOSIag

SUVAA AVANA'TVI NHL LSV'1
SOLLSILV.LS DINONOODY ANV DIHdVIOOWIA

VINIOAT'TVD ‘VSHIA VLSOD 40 ALID
91 A'TdV.L



144!

yuounreda(] Juswidojoas(] wawkorduwy eTuIofI[E)) JO 91B)S J3a1speld 29 Uun( :99Inos

$00Z-€00 1224 [e9S1 10§ S[qE[IEAE 10U EIE(] (|,

%LL0 01 00¢ "ou] ‘WHO0ISPION
%LLO 6 00¢ ouf ‘sa13o[ouyod ], INLL
%¢6°0 8 009 uonerodio)) Ju|l]
%cCe1 L 0S8 ou] ‘are) Jurp[ing o1y1oed
%981 9 00Z°1 qniD omy 2y} Jo a3uryoXy OURMSULISIU]
%161 S 0ST1 SIMUS A JUIO[ AYMEIIN/NIR]D) V
0%2€°T ¥ 00S°1 I91UD)) TeIUaWdO[IA(] MIIATIR ]
%¥b6C € 006°1 334100 Aunururo)) Jse0)) 93ueIQ
%6V v [4 006°C UONERpUNO,] JOLUSI(T 933[[0)) ATUNUIIO) JSB0))
%EL’S I 00L°€ uonnjog uoyeuLoU] uetddXy

juowkordurg yuey soako[dwry juowAorduryg yuey saakordurg IoKordurg

A1) 1e10f, jo A1) @101, Jo

98eIua0I9g a8euaorad
o ¥00T-£00¢ £10C-C10¢C

OOV SUVHA ANIN ANV YVHA LNTIJIND
SYHAOTdNA TVAIONIEd

VINMOAI'TVD ‘VSAI VLSO 40 ALID
LT ATAVLE



94!

yusuupreda(y 2oURUL] BSIIA RISOD) JO A1) 192IN0S

S9I°1 S91°1 S9T°I S91°Y 09C°1 00T°1 SLT1 00€°1 9¢T1 SLT1
788°L 90C°L $0Sy 086°L L00°8 SEV'9 $90°s 00t°S oY’ 01¥'s
06S°€l 06S°€1 00S°¢1 000°61 008°61 000°CL 000°CC wLTT 6S¥°ST $T0°St
SYEPI SYEPI 05Tl 0S8Vl 05871 00082 005°91 8LY 61 80L°LI 00091
8c¢ 61¢ 0LT (1197 009 059 009 (437 8¢k oty
11¥Ty Y0¥ €06°0¢ LSEEE £v8°ce PEL°LY 66L°TE 000°ST 005 000°02
000°L 00%'9 00T'L 00L9 00,9 00L‘9 089 L9T9 LS99 018°S
00T o1t 8¢T $8T €8T 881 081 192 8LI $sT
000°01L 008°6 0056 005°6 0S¥'6 00¥°6 0006 0L 9.8°8 00¢°8
£€1°81 126'1C 718°61 €09%C £09°4T £09°vT 081°%¢ 00£°9% Y0LLT 9£T ¥
%0t %ST %ST %ST %ST %ST %ST %ST %IT %ET
008 09%°1 STVl 009°1 STl 009°1 009°1 009°1 851 SES°T
%0t %ST %ST %ST %ST %ST %ST %ST %ET %€ET
000°1 006°1 $50°C 000°C $S0°T 000°1 000°T 000 01T 866°1
%<8 %08 %28 %T8 %T8 - %08 %08 %18 %58 %58
081°1 091°1 0£T1 0S€°1 0S¢l 0S¥l 001 06€°1 9et'1 LVl
LT6PSST 65S9YLT 9L¥'8TST 000°092°C 000°596°% 000°0ST’S 000°00T°S 085°010°S 8T6°LST'S £€1°¢TT9
1956 ¥€9°6 L81°01 005°C1 005°C1 000°C1 0STTl SLOTT €69°11 STSIL
005°1 €20°T 000°¢ 0sT°€ 008°C 0sT'E 0sZ'¢ 005°€ 866°C ST6'E
€10T 710T 110T 010T 600T 800T L00T 900T $00T 002
SaB3 X [BISL
SAVAAX TVOSIA NAL LSV'1

81 H'IdV.L

NVEIDOAL/NOLLIONNA A9 STIOLVOIANI ONILVAAdO

VINJOAI'TVD VST VISOD 40 ALID

A[[enute pauea[d SUISEq YoJed JO Joqump]

A[fenuue pIWUILL $321) JO I9qUITN
S3OIAISS OIqnd
sfep Sunjzom
() om urgpim asuodsar jurejdwo))
smoy 7 [Mm sisanbar uonoadsuy
sAep Suppiom (§) SAL} UIYIM
PIMIIALI SO Uejd IS)UMO2-34I-19A0)
191U97) UOILAISYY UMOIUMO(] Y}
je syuedronred wrerdold Jo requimN
surer3o1J AJTUNUWo))

sasuodsai pie [eorpat Aousdiowyg

sosuodsal pajefar a1,

9OIAISS IO S[[E0 JO I3qUINN
uonoajord amg

passaoo01d spodai 3salre pue ose))
parea]o soses Arer31nq Jo 98eIu01g
soseo Are[ding paudissy
PaTea]d sased Jau Jo afeuacing
$95BD 1Ja1p poudissy
SoIUIW ¢ UMM 03 poapuodsal s|[e)
s[reo Aouadowyg
uono3joxd 20104
Kyradoid pue suosiad Jo uornoal01g

paonpoxd sardooojoyd doysyuud [ero],
pansst )oY 2jqeAed spunosoy
surexdoid saoialas
o11qnd BIA PIAIDS SJUSPISII JO I9qUMN
JUSUILISAOL) [BISUID)

TeI301J/Uonoun



4!

jusunteda(] 9oueUL,] BSIJA BISOD JO L)1) 192IN0S

quawnreda(] 991AI9G J1[qng [IIM PIUIGUIOD Sem UOISIAIP UOHRIINSY Ay ‘UoNIppE U Jusunyeda(] d0ueul ] Sy} Iim paurquiod

Sem UOISIAL(] AS0[OUYD3 |, UOHeULIOfU] ay} pue jusuneda( SI00HJ0 QATNIOXY JOIYD Y} YIm PIUIqUIOD S19M JUSWATRURIA STy PUe ‘SIJIAISS [BOUaD)

‘S20.MOSY UeWIN] Se yons jusuntedsp jey) 0] pajedo[[e A[SnolAdId SUOISIAL(] PoZIueS10a1 sem JuaunIedo(] SAIAIOS SANRISIUIWIPY SAID @

"PaYR[NO[BD SIOM SIUS[BAINDS SWM-[[TY 2JoUM Ieak [2IS ISI S} ST #(-£(00T 1834 [BOSL] -

68889

£8'8¢CS ¥8°LSS T9°LSS 6.°989 97 90L 69°00L $6'569 II'vIL SIL
66'v11 ST6L 05°9L 96'801 06801 06801 801 00°101 76 €11 148!
vr's6 v'96 86 6Tl geTil  eTll  OVEll  TeTil 6Tl €1l
09°6€T 89°0¢CC 88°¢1C €9'vSC L7992 €L779C €L°85T SLYST ¢Test (394
65°LT 05°9C 00°0¢ 0S'vy 00°S¥ 00°Sy 00°Sy oSty 0S'vv 194

= LY 96 c0°€0l 98611 17971 99'vC1 61°sC1 8C°0¢l 9¢1
1TLT SL°LT SLLI e e e L9 €T L9€T L9°€T ve

- : - - : - - - 9 9
00ZC SLST 00°€t 0091 9591 9591 9591 LTI LTI 91
09 0S 0¢ Y Y g's Y Y Y 9
0 €10T  TI0T 1102 010T 600T 800C L00T 900T 5002 o 7002

SIBIX [BISL]
SAVHA 'TVISIA NAL LSV'1

SOOIAIAS I1[qnd

uonoejoad a1
uonoelold 201104
Kuadoad pue suosied Jo uod9101y

$901A138 Juawdo[aAa(g
SOOIAISS SALJRLSIUTUIPY
SIOIAIAS 1] 29 [BIOURUL]
Kawope A1)
901 Q SJ901J0O 2AINIIXY JOIYD
[1ounod A1)

JUSUIUISAOL) [RISUSL)

WeIdo1d/uonoun

NVIIOUI/NOLLONNA A9 STIAOTIINA INTNWNIATAOD ALID INTTVAINOT ANWILL-T104

61 H'TdV.L

VINIOAI'TVD ‘VSIIN VLSOD 40 ALID



Lyl

jusunreda(] 20UBUL] BSSIA BISOD) JO AJI) :99IN0S

Sy Y7 ¢Sy Sy S¢Sy 97 Sy 1989 % ¢Sy 0%
L’sce L'STE L'STe LSTe L’Ste L'STe LsTe LsTe L'sce LsTe
13 ¢ t € € 3 £ 13 ¢ £
01 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 6 6
S 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 S S
0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 3 0¢ 0¢
LS6°T LS6°1 LS6°1 LS6°1 LS6°1 LS6°T LS61 LS6] LS6°1 LS6°
£Cl 14! 11! (44! [44! (44! 911 911 20! SII
¥L9°9 vL9°9 6999 699°9 699°9 6999 9L9°0 1999 8599 8599
0°5C¢ 0°5CS 0°6CS 0°sCs 0°sCs 0°6Cs 0°¢Ts 0°¢Cs 0°sC¢ 0°s¢Cs
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
i [4 [4 [4 [4 (4 [4 [4 [4 [4
£107 10T 110C 010¢ 600C 800¢C L00T 900¢C $00¢ 00T
SIBd X [8IS1]
SUVHAX TVOSIA NAL LSV

0T ' IdVL

INVIDOUI/NOLLONNA Ad SOLLSILV.LS LASSV 'TVLIdVO
VINJOAITVD ‘VSAN VLSO A0 ALID

SIOMOS ULI0]S
SIoMIs Arejuesg
(so[Iur) IaTBMIISE A

SISJUID AJUNUIO))

SP[1] [[2q100}/19090S

spuourelp [[eqyos/j[eqaseq

SIS NIed

ooeds uodo Jo sa1oy
UOI}BaIdAI PUE SHIed

s[eusIs JljJer],
SIY3IRang
(so[rw auel) $1931S
sytom orqnd 19910
suonje)s a1
oI
SuonEISqNS/SuUone)S
adl[od

weIdoid/uonoun,y



148



